b

HUA XTA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED
BT PEMA RA A

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RHSREEMBLZBRAR)
(Stock Code BRAAREE : 8143)

Annual Report

2012/2013

F R

* For identification purpose only {2 {51



CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to

professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is
a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a

liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or

any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

For and on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Hua
Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, the Group continued to see increase in our
revenue owing to the increasing market demand for the provision
of general hospital services and pharmaceutical products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). Turnover of the Group for
the year was approximately HK$2,020.589 million in comparison
with HK$1,835.776 million in 2012. The gross profit of the
Group was approximately HK$238.862 million in comparison with
HK$235.213 million in 2012. The net profit attributable to the
owners of the Company was approximately HK$42.740 million in
comparison with HK$49.666 million in 2012. After excluding the
effect and from the loss on early redemption of promissory note,
the related expenses incurred for the Group's spin-off project of
approximately HK$6.515 million, and the gain on the disposal of
the subsidiary in 2012, the net profit attributable to the owners of
the Company yielded a slight increase of 3% compared to that of
2012.

OPERATION REVIEW
During the year ended 31 March 2013, all in all, amid the
challenging environment, the Group sustained its growth

momentum.

Although the regulatory changes will pose challenges to the
operating environment in the healthcare and pharmaceutical
industry, the demand for healthcare services and pharmaceutical
products sustains the robust growth fuelled by various favorable
factors, such as the extended medical insurance coverage into the
different diseases for different segments of the population across
the country, the rise in per capita funding standards for medical
insurance, the acceleration in urbanization and the ageing of

China’s population.
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Therefore, we believe the healthcare services and pharmaceutical
industry will maintain their upward trend in 2013/14 as well
as throughout the whole period of “12th Five-Year Plan”.
By leveraging the sales and marketing capabilities, optimized
and high quality product mixes, experienced and professional
management team, as well as its dedicated staff, we are optimistic

to begin with the year 2013/14 for the future development.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank for the kind support
from our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders.
| also take this opportunity to thank our colleagues on the Board
and the staff of the Group for their diligent work, loyal services

and contributions offered.

Yung Kwok Leong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEESRETH

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2013 is as follows:

o Total turnover was approximately HK$2,020.589 million
(2012: approximately HK$1,835.776 million), representing
approximately 10.07% of growth over 2012. The rise in
the turnover was driven by the increase demand for the
provision of general hospital services and the sales from the
pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical

retail chain businesses in the PRC.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$238.862 million (2012:
approximately HK$235.213 million), which maintained at a

similar level as 2012.

o Net profit attributable to owners of the Company was
approximately HK$42.740 million (2012: approximately
HK$49.666 million), representing approximately 14%
decrease as compared to the previous year. The decrease
was mainly contributed to (1) the loss on early redemption
of promissory note, (2) the related expenses incurred for the
Group’s spin-off project of approximately HK$6.515 million
and (3) there was no gain on disposal of subsidiary during
current year. By excluding such effects, the Group recorded
a slightly increase in profit attributable to the owners of the

Company of approximately 3% compared to last year.

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In July 2012, the Company submitted a spin-off proposal to the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Practice Note 3 to the GEM Listing
Rules in relation to the Proposed Spin-off and separate listing of
the pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain businesses of the Group (the “Spun-off Group”) by
way of introduction and the Company was considering a proposal
to declare and distribute the shareholders a special dividend in
connection with the proposed spin-off (the “Proposed Spin-off”).
After the Proposed Spin-off, the Remaining Group would remain

focus in provision of general hospital services in the PRC.

In September 2012, the Stock Exchange has confirmed that the
Company proceeds with the Proposed Spin-off. The Directors
believe that the Proposed Spin-off would better reflect the value
of its provision of the pharmaceutical business, and that the listing
by way of introduction would give a clearer corporate identity to
the Spun-off Group and would enhance the image of the Spun-
off Group for its future growth, while the Remaining Group can
focus on the operation of the hospital business with its resources,
and therefore the Directors believe that the Proposed Spin-off will
be beneficial to both the Group and the Spun-off Group and their

respective existing and future shareholders.

Up to the date of this report, the Proposed Spin-off is in progress
and is subjected to, among others, the approvals from the
shareholders of the Company and the Stock Exchange, and may or
may not proceed. Accordingly shareholders of the Company and
potential investors are reminded to exercise caution when dealing

in the securities of the Company.

Turnover

Looking back at 2012/13, the Group’s revenue experienced
steady growth. The Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$2,020.589 million (2012: approximately HK$1,835.776
million) for the year ended 31 March 2013, accounting for an
increase of 10.07% over last year. The gross profit margin of the
Group was approximately 12%, which maintained at a similar

level as in 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEESRETH

General hospital services

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group operated
two general hospitals in Chongqging and Jiaxing and managed
one general hospital in Zhuhai city, principally engaged in the
provision of general hospital services, including but not limited to
medical wards, surgical wards, cosmetic surgery, dermatology and
medical checkup and examination. The management envisions
more diversified hospital services readily available to satisfy various
needs of the public in the next few years, from the common
illness treatments to the care of special and difficult disease.
Therefore the Group will continue to allocate resources to develop
those services either from our existing hospitals or through
collaboration. The turnover generated from general hospital
services amounted to approximately HK$141.525 million (2012:
approximately HK$134.504 million), representing a steady increase

of 5% over last year.

Pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain businesses

The Group engages in the wholesale, distribution of a board range
of pharmaceutical products to hospitals, clinics and pharmacies
in Fujian Province, the PRC. The Group's pharmaceutical retail
chain operation has maintained the leading position in both retail
drug store numbers and comprehensive competitiveness within
Fujian Province, as ranked by the independent associations in the
PRC. The Group continues to allocate resources and to look for
business opportunities to expand the pharmaceutical wholesale,
distribution and retail chain businesses. Turnover generated from
pharmaceutical wholesales, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain business amounted to approximately HK$1,879.064
million (2012: approximately HK$1,701.272 million), representing
approximately 10.45% of growth over 2012 and accounted for
approximately 93% of the Group’s turnover. The increase was
primarily due to the broadened revenue base from a further

diversified product portfolio.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including exhibition income, rental
income, interest income from bank deposits and interest income
from loan receivables, amounted to approximately HK$10.376
million (2012: approximately HK$8.689 million) for the year ended
31 March 2013, representing an increase of around 19.42% over
last year. Exhibition income mainly represented the aggregate of
participation fee income and entrance fee income from exhibition

activities organised by the Group.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1)
salaries and wages of sales and marketing personnel, (2) rental
expenses and (3) transportation expenses. For the year ended
31 March 2013, selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately HK$79.677 million (2012: approximately
HK$78.500 million), representing slightly increase over the same
period of last year. More selling and distribution expenses incurred

due to the expansion of the business scale.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2013
amounted to approximately HK$86.354 million (2012:
approximately HK$74.049 million), representing an increase of
approximately 16.62% over last year. The increment was mainly
contributed by the Group’s spin-off project expenses and the

expansion of the Group’s scale of operation.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the finance costs of the Group
were approximately HK$10.288 million (2012: approximately
HK$11.223 million), representing a decrease of approximately
8.3% over the last year. The reduction was mainly due to early

redemption of the promissory note during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEESRETH

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$42.740 million (2012:
approximately HK$49.666 million) during the year ended 31
March 2013, representing a decrease about 14% compared
to the same period of last year. The decrease was mainly
contributed to (1) the loss on early redemption of promissory
note, (2) the related expenses incurred for the Group’s spin-off
project of approximately HK$6.515 million and (3) there was no
gain on disposal of subsidiary during current year. By excluding
such effects, the Group recorded a slightly increase of profit
attributable to the owners of the Company around 3% compared
to same period of last year.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

As a result of the healthcare reform and heavy investment from
the government, for the last few years, the healthcare in China
has become the direct recipient of the economic benefits. Among
them all, the fast growing healthcare expenditures have surpassed
the GDP of the country with an annual compound increase of
19.03% from 1990 to 2009. At the same time, the per capita
healthcare expenditures have also achieved 18.01% for the same
period. The experiences from the developed countries show
that once the per capita GDP reaches US$10,000, the general
healthcare expenditures will begin with an exponential increase.
This will fundamentally increase demands for quality healthcare
services and pharmaceutical products. Those developments have
certainly laid out the solid foundation for the Group to continue
to grow and to improve at all levels.

The management of the Group has realised the potential
opportunities in the field and continued to address the needs of
the market and the public through refined services and quality
products. For the hospitals, we believe that the key to the success
lies in the well trained staff and standardised medical services.
In addition to cultivating the new services implemented at the
hospitals, the management has focused on the improved delivery
procedures and patient oriented care. Our hospitals have well
established themselves in their each local market in the both
brands and competitiveness. The challenge to a steady and
more profitable growth is to strengthen the brands by increasing
patients’ satisfaction and adapting the affordable quality service
approaches. All of those will help the hospitals achieve further
penetration into the fast growing healthcare market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

For the pharmaceutical business, the market consolidation has
continued at national and local levels, providing promising
opportunities for the large scale of operations like the Group.
Among many of favorable trends, we see a large room for the
development of our distributions businesses at hospital levels
and also at retail. The unique composition of the Group in this
business allows us to take the advantage of the both policy and
market growth. We will continue to see the strong growth of drug
delivery to hospitals and wholesales segments while the expansion
of retails drugstores will enlarge the market shares in the year
2013/14.

The new financial year 2013/14 will reach the late part of the
12th Five Year Plan in China, and the Group will begin to achieve
the fruitful performances supported by the early financial and
technical investments and preparation for the both businesses.
Therefore, the management of the Group will make great efforts
to leverage the well recognised brands of the hospitals and
pharmaceutical distribution to maintain our steady increase and to

improve the profitability of our core healthcare operations.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group had total cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$79.980 million as at 31 March 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$109.212 million).

The Group recorded total current assets of approximately
HK$713.503 million as at 31 March 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$624.332 million) and total current liabilities of approximately
HK$394.746 million as at 31 March 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$348.548 million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated
by dividing the current assets by the current liabilities, was
approximately 1.807 as at 31 March 2013 (2012: approximately
1.791).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEER W RETH

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's gearing ratio was
approximately 18% based on outstanding debts (comprising bill
payables, bank borrowings, convertible note and promissory note)
less cash and cash equivalents over total equity (including all
capital and reserves of the Group) (2012: 17%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, the Group had no
material capital commitment.

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

There are no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

during the year under review.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2013, no member of the Group was engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no
litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the
Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars and most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the directors consider that
the Group’s risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be minimal.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had bank borrowings
outstanding balances and bill payables of approximately
HK$50.672 million and HK$4.350 million respectively. The Group's
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$3.609 million, was
pledged as collateral to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) provision of general hospital services and
(2) pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and pharmaceutical
retail chain businesses. Financial information in respect of these
operations is presented in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2013, the total issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$11.824 million (2012:
approximately HK$11.824 million) divided into 1,083,938,264
ordinary shares and 98,500,000 non-voting convertible preference
shares (2012: 910,938,264 ordinary shares and 271,500,000 non-
voting convertible preference shares) of HK$0.01 (2012: HK$0.01)

each.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 1,754 (2012: 1,626) full

time employees (including directors) as shown in the following
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEESRETH

For the year ended 31 March 2013, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$91.843 million
(2012: approximately HK$79.350 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include the
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, bonus
and medical coverage in Hong Kong; and basic insurance for
the elderly, basic medical insurance, work injury insurance and
unemployment insurance to the employees in the PRC. The Group
also adopted employee share option scheme to provide eligible
employees a performance incentive for continuous and improved
services with the Group and to enhance their contributions to
increase profits by encouraging capital accommodation and share

ownership.

OTHER INFORMATION

By a sale and purchase agreement dated 13 November 2009 (the
“Acquisition Agreement”), and entered into between Mr. Yung
Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”), an executive director and the single
largest substantial shareholder of the Company, as vendor, and
Timely Hero Enterprises Limited (“Timely Hero”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company as purchaser, the Group acquired from
Mr. Yung the entire issued share capital of Nurture Fit Limited
(“Nurture Fit”, together with its subsidiaries, “Nurture Fit Group”)
and all the shareholder’s loan in Nurture Fit. Completion of the

Acquisition Agreement took place on 8 March 2010.

Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement, Mr. Yung has irrevocably
guaranteed and warranted to Timely Hero (“Profit Guarantee”)
that the audited consolidated net profit after taxation and
extraordinary or exceptional items and minority interests of
the Nurture Fit Group for the year ending 31 March 2011 (the
“Net Profit”) shall not be less than the guaranteed profit of
HK$50,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the circular of the Company dated 11 February 2010, the
Company stated that the independent non-executive directors of
the Company would provide an opinion in the Company’s next
annual report after the Net Profit has determined as to whether
the Profit Guarantee is fulfilled. If the Profit Guarantee was not
achieved, the Company would also make announcement to inform

the shareholders about the same.

The audited consolidated net profit after taxation and
extraordinary or exceptional items and minority interest of the
Nurture Fit Group for year ended 31 March 2011 was more
than the Guaranteed Profit. As such, Mr. Yung had fulfilled his

obligations in relation to the Profit Guarantee.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company, namely
Prof. Hu Shanlian, Pro. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne have reviewed the Net Profit and confirmed that such

Profit Guarantee was fulfilled and met.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 10 April 2013, the Company entered into the non-redeemable

convertible preference share (“CPS") subscription agreement with
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung"”), pursuant to which, Mr. Yung
has agreed to subscribe for and the Company has agreed to issue
the 504,201,680 non-redeemable convertible preference shares
at the total issue price of HK$120 million which will be satisfied
by setting off against HK$120 million principal amount of the

promissory note (the “Subscription”).

Up to the date of this report, the Subscription is still subject to
fulfilment of conditions precedent, details of the transaction are

set out in the Company’s announcement dated 10 April 2013.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant event took

place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profiles

ESERSREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”), aged 48, the Chairman of
the Board, being a registered economist in the Fujian Province in
the PRC, has over 20 years’ experience in corporate management
and investment in the healthcare and pharmaceutical sectors
in the PRC. Mr. Yung is currently the vice president of China
Federation of Overseas Chinese Entrepreneurs and Xin Jiang
Federation of Returned Overseas Chinese, Fujian Committee of
Chinese Political Consultative Conference, as well as the chairman
of Hong Kong Putian Co. and the honorable chairman of Hong
Kong Puxian Native Association. Mr. Yung was appointed as an
executive director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 2 March 2005, 29
April 2005 and 26 March 2010 respectively.

Dr. Jiang Tao (“Dr. Jiang”), aged 57, holds a degree of doctor
of audiology from the Arizona School of Health Sciences of AT
Still University in the United States and two master's degrees
in audiology/speech pathology and in special education from
Lamar University of Texas in the United States. He served as
senior management in several enterprises in the United States,
Canada and the PRC with over 15 years of experience in senior
management, consultancy and investment in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Canada and the United States. Dr. Jiang has also established six
enterprises in the PRC with Canadian capital. He is currently the
life time visiting Professor of the Kunming Normal University,
and a researcher at the Low Carbon Center of the Macro
Economic Association under the National Development & Reform
Commission of the PRC, formerly Assistant Professor of Dalhousie
University of Canada, Sichuan University, and Sun Yatsen Medical
University. Dr. Jiang was appointed as an executive director and
Deputy Chief Executive of the Company on 3 January 2007 and
26 March 2010 respectively.

Mr. Zheng Gang (“Mr. Zheng”), aged 45, holds a master degree
in business administration from Cardiff Business School in the
United Kingdom and a bachelor degree in engineering from
Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Zheng has over 18 years of
management experience in finance, investment and trading. Mr.
Zheng was appointed as an executive director of the Company on
1 August 2007.
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Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Profiles

Dr. Huang Jiaqing ("Dr. Huang”), aged 62, has over 30 years
of professional experience in the PRC's medical fields, including
clinical, preventive and emergency medicine. Dr. Huang has
served as hospital doctor, director of hospital’s emergency centre,
head of the sanitation and anti-epidemic department in hospital,
head of the hospital and medical administration bureau in the
PRC municipal government. To honour Dr. Huang's distinguished
expertise in the medical fields, he enjoys special subsidisation from
the State Council of the PRC. Dr. Huang is currently the executive
vice president of the Group. Dr. Huang was appointed as an

executive director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan (“Mr. Chen”), aged 45, holds a bachelor
degree in finance and accounting in the PRC. Mr. Chen has over
15 years of accounting experience in private companies. He
had also been a project manager for more than 6 years in an
accounting firm. Mr. Chen was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 April 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James (“Dr. Wong”), aged 60, holds two
bachelor degrees in medicine and surgery from the University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Wong also holds a doctorate degree in medicine
from Freiburg University in Germany. He has over 30 years of
experience in medical and healthcare services in Hong Kong.
Dr. Wong was appointed as the non-executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne (“Ms. Wong"), aged 49, has over 25
years of experience in finance, accounting, taxation and corporate
affairs. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Society
of Trust and Estate Practitioner and the Certified Tax Advisor in
Hong Kong. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor degree in economics
from the University of Sydney, Australia. Ms. Wong is currently the
managing director of a private company providing consulting and

management services, as well as the chief financial officer of a
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EEREREEAEHE

local law firm and consultant of a local CPA firm. Ms. Wong is also
currently an independent non-executive director and a member
of the remuneration committee and the chairlady of the audit
committee of Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited and Phoenitron
Holdings Limited which both companies listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. Ms. Wong was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1 November 2007.

Prof. Hu Shanlian (“Prof. Hu"), aged 76, is a professor in
Health Economics and has a Master degree in Science from the
London School of Tropical Medicine and Hygiene. At present, he
is the director of Training Centre for Health Management and
Pharmacoeconomics Research and Evaluation Centre at School
of Public Health at Fudan University in the PRC. Prof. Hu is also
the director of Health Development Research Centre in the
Shanghai Bureau of Health. Prof. Hu also held senior positions in
the National Health Economic Institution and China Network of
Training and Research in Health Economics and Financing between
1991 and 2005, which were supported by the Ministry of Health
of the PRC and World Bank respectively. Prof. Hu was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
July 2009.

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen (“Prof. Lu”), aged 75, is a neurologist and
has over 50 years of medical professional experience. Prof. Lu
is currently the lifetime professor of Shanghai Huashan Hospital
in the PRC and a director in the World Health Organisation’s
Neuroscience Research and Training Centre. Prof. Lu was
formerly the chairman and director of the Institute of Neurology
in Shanghai Medical University, the chairman of the Chinese
Association of Neurology and chairman of the Shanghai
association of Neurology in the Chinese Medical Society. Prof. Lu
also has an international membership with New York Academy of
Sciences. Prof. Lu was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 30 July 2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Williamson (“Mr. Lam”), aged 38, joined the Group in
December 2007. Mr. Lam is the Group's chief financial officer and
company secretary of the Company. He has more than 10 years’
experience in finance and company secretarial functions. Mr. Lam
is a member of the Certified Practising Accountant in Australia
and also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the key elements in creating shareholders’ value.
The Company is also committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance that can properly protect and promote the
interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability of the Company. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code"”) (effective from 1
April 2012) as stated in Appendix 15 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.2.1, separation
of roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code
provision A.2.1 as disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer”, the Company has met all the code provisions in
the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2013.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a set of code for the required standard
of dealings in securities by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of directors of the Company and the directors confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard with
respect to the securities dealings of the Company and there was
no event of non-compliance during the period from 1 April 2012
to 31 March 2013.
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ERERWME

THE BOARD

The Board assumes overall responsibilities for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company and its business by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
focuses on overall corporate strategies and policies with attention

particularly paid to the financial performance of the Company.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations are followed. Each director is normally able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances

at the Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

There is a clear division of the responsibilities of the Board and the
management. The Board delegated its responsibilities to directors
and senior management to deal with day-to-day operations and

review those arrangements on a periodic basis.

Management has to report back to the Board and obtain prior
approval before making decisions for key matters or entering into
any commitments on behalf of the Company. The Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of

the business of the Company.

The Board has established three committees, namely, Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference which are disclosed on the

Company’s website and the Stock Exchange Website.

Appropriate directors’ liability insurance cover has been arranged
to indemnify the directors of the Company for liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.
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Board Composition and Attendance Records of

Directors

The Board currently composes of five executive directors, one non-
executive director and three independent non-executive directors.
During the year, seven full board meetings were held and
attendance (either in person or through other electronic means

of communication) record of each director at the meetings of the

Corporate Governance Report

%A—’rsAiEi

EFgCHRREEZHFERS

ExZERNAOUATES:
R=UBIFRHTESER -FR - BITT L
# MRBE-T-—=5=71
E-I-—EIH:ﬁJFI*JR%%tHJﬁE(%E%tHEEWE
BHMEFBELIN) ESE

RERESES

—fIFHITES

s EEEX

Board together with the meetings of the audit, remuneration and %ﬁ%&k%%ﬁ%%%&fﬁ‘: —:i;ﬁﬁz
nomination committee during the year ended 31 March 2013 and BRRBFRGZEHERIIWT -
annual general meeting held in 2012 are set out below.
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HEX® E&HA
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee 2012 AGM
—E--&§
Name of directors EEpa Exg ELERE FHERE REZERE REBEFEXE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong SESEE
(Chairman and (EERTEER)
Chief Executive Officer) 6/7 N/A T8 F N/A T8 A ”n 0/1
Dr. Jiang Tao BEfEt
(Deputy Chief Executive) (fTEEI%E%) 717 N/A T N/A R N/A R A 0N
Mr. Weng Jiaxing SmELE
(Deputy Chief Executive)* (fTBEEE) 5/7 N/A T N/A R A N/A 7 A 0N
Mr. Zheng Gang WL 717 N/A T N/A R N/A R A 1/1
Dr. Huang Jiaging EMERE 717 N/A T N/A R N/A R 0N
Mr. Chen Jin Shan REW ks 717 N/A T A N/A T8 A N/A T8 A 1N
Non-executive director ERTER
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James ITHRESE 6/7 N/A T N/A R N/A R A 0N
Independent non- BIUFUTEE
executive directors
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne BEEZut 717 4/4 N/A R A 1/1 0/1
Prof. Hu Shanlian HEBAK 717 4/4 N/A T8 F n 0/1
Prof. Lu Chuanzhen REEHR 717 4/4 N/A T8 F n 0/1
* 5 meetings were held prior to his resignation on 28 December 2012 * RER=F——F+=H=+1/VHBEEFET
BEXEF
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The list of the

been maintained at the websites of the Company and the Stock

“Directors and their Role and Function” has

Exchange. The directors’ biographies and the relationship among
the board members, if any, are disclosed under the “Directors’ and
Senior Management's Profiles” on pages 18 to 20 of this annual

report.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge
and expertise that each director brings to bear in its deliberations,
the Board believes that it is appropriately structured to provide
sufficient checks and balances to protect the interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The Board will review its composition
regularly to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
expertise, skills and experience to continue to effectively oversee

the business of the Company.

Responsibilities of directors

The non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors, with diversified expertise, skills and experience, play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that
the Board maintains high standards of corporate governance.
The Board had received from each independent non-executive
director a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of independent non-executive
directors up to the date of this report is in accordance with the
GEM Listing Rules.

On a regular basis, senior management provides the directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group’s performance,
position and prospect. All directors are kept informed of and duly
briefed of major changes and information that may affect the

Group’s business in a timely manner.
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Every Board member is entitled to have access to board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek
external professional advice if so required. The company secretary
continuously updates all directors on the latest development
of the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate

governance practice.

Training and Continuous Development for Directors

Each newly appointed director is provided with comprehensive
induction to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the operations and businesses of the Group as well as his
responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements. For directors to keep abreast
of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of the
conduct, business activities and development of the Company,
the Company had provided trainings for directors in the form
of seminar and reading materials. The Company has devised a
training record to assist the directors to record the training they
have undertaken. Also, the completed records are received from

each of the directors as confirmation.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong
currently serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides with strong and consistent leadership and allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business

decisions and strategies.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of
the Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether
any changes, including the separation of the roles of chairman

and chief executive officer.
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DIRECTORS

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive director should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
Company’s non-executive director has been appointed for specific

term and subject to re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
directors who have been longest in office since their last election
or re-election are also subject to retirement by rotation at the
annual general meeting. All retiring directors are eligible for re-

election.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person to discuss and formulate
overall strategic direction and objectives and also approve annual,
interim and quarterly results as well as other significant matters of
the Company. Execution of daily operational matters is delegated

to management.

The company secretary assists the Chairman in preparing notice
and agenda for the meetings, and ensures that the Company
complied with the corporate governance practices and other
compliance matters. Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda
of each meeting are normally made available to directors in
advance. At least 14 days' notice of all regular board meetings
were given to all directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular discussion. Board papers
together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each regular board
meeting or committee meeting (or such other period as agreed) to
keep directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed

decisions.
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All directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that the Board procedures and

all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Minutes of the Board/committee meetings are recorded in
significant detail for any decision and recommendation made
during the meetings. Draft and final versions of minutes are
circulated to directors or committee members within a reasonable
time after the meetings are held and taken as the true records
of the proceedings of such meetings. All minutes are kept by the
company secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable

time on reasonable notice by any director.

All directors are entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on

disclosure due to regulatory requirements.

If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by way
of a Board/committee meeting and the interested shareholder or
director shall not vote nor shall he/she be counted in the quorum
present at the relevant meeting. Independent non-executive
director who, and whose associates, have no material interest in

the transaction, should be present at such a board meeting.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 2 November
2001, with written terms of reference compliance with rules
5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and is disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Audit Committee of the Company is
comprised of three independent non-executive directors, namely,
Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong Ka Wai,
Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the Audit

Committee.
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The Audit Committee met four times a year in 2013 and the main

duties of the Audit Committee during the year include:

(@) Reviewing the Group’s audited annual and unaudited interim
and quarterly results and reports and consider any significant

or unusual items before submission to the Board.

(b) Reviewing the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditors.

(c)  Reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

(d) Advising on material even or drawing the attention of the

management on related risks.

The external auditors were invited to attend the said meetings to
discuss with the Audit Committee on issues arising from the audit
and financial reporting matters. Besides, there is no disagreement
between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the

reappointment of external auditors.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference as disclosed on the Company's website.
The Nomination Committee is comprised of three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne,
Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Yung Kwok Leong. Mr. Yung Kwok Leong is the

chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition, including the skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and identify
individuals suitable qualified to become directors and select, or

make recommendations to the Board for directorships.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
2013.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 3
June 2005 with written terms of reference as disclosed on the
Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee has four
members comprising an executive director of the Company, Mr.
Zheng Gang and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Prof. Hu Shanlian, Prof. Lu Chuanzhen and Ms. Wong
Ka Wai, Jeanne. Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne is the chairlady of the

Remuneration Committee.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include
the determination of specific remuneration package of all
executive directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive directors. The Remuneration Committee considers
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the directors, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of

performance-based remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, no meeting was held but
resolutions in writing from the Remuneration Committee members
were passed to consider and approve the increase of emoluments

of an executive director.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2013.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual, interim and quarterly
reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the GEM Listing Rules and other statutory and
regulatory requirements. The directors are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the relevant accounting periods under applicable statutory
and regulatory requirements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows of
the Group. In preparing the annual, interim and quarterly results
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2013, the Directors
have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them

consistently.

The responsibility of the auditors with respect to these
consolidated financial statements is set out in the Independent

Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 56 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year, the company secretary of the Company has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of professional training to

update his skills and knowledge.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group's internal
control and for reviewing the effectiveness of these controls.
Internal control systems are designed to meet the particular needs

of the Group and the risk to which it is exposed.

In consideration of the size of the Group, the Board does not
consider to establish an internal audit team at present. However,
the key control procedure established by the Group is a day-to-day
supervision of the business by the executive directors, supported
by the managers responsible for the operation and the key division
support functions of finance, information system and human
resources. Key elements of internal control describe below have

been in place throughout the year under review:

- procedures for the approval of capital expenditure and

payments;

- regular financial information provided to management for

reviewing the Group's performance; and

- clearly defined management structure and line of

responsibility.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the fees paid or payable to
the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by

the auditors of the Group were as follows:
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Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services RFEHEE W (T#&ERT)
Audit services ER 900
Non-audit services BRI 2,486

The non-audit services fee was related to the Group's spin-off

project.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company has not
made any changes to its Articles of Association. An up to date
version of the Company's Article of Association is also available on

the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board believes that a transparent and timely disclosure
of the Group’s information will enable shareholders and
investors to make the best investment decision and to have
better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’s potential and

existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at www.huaxia-healthcare.com
as a communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information and updates on the Group’s financial

information and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company,
such as telephone number, fax number, email address and postal
address, in order to enable them to make any query that they
may have with respect to the Company. They can also send
their enquiries to the Board through these means. In addition,
shareholders can contact the share registrar of the Company, if

they have any enquires about their shareholdings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company after each shareholder meeting.

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings, and the
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the company secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held

within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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The directors have pleasure to present their annual report and the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2013.

DATE OF INCORPORATION
The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 May

2001 under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 10 May 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of general
hospital services, pharmaceutical wholesale, distribution and
pharmaceutical retail chain businesses in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 5.25%
of the Group’s turnover and the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 19.59% of the Group’s

turnover during the financial year.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented approximately 30.77% of the Group’s total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 11.85% of the Group’s total value of purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder, which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the share
capital of any of the five largest customers and suppliers of the

Group.

Report of the Directors
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EEEHRG

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at 31 March
2013 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
57 to 187.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
a dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity respectively.

The Company had distributable reserves of approximately
HK$739.823 million as at 31 March 2013 (2012: approximately
HK$747.472 million). Under the Companies Law (Revised)
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company's Articles of Association, dividends shall be
distributed out of the retained profits or other reserves, including

the share premium account, of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date

of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Jiang Tao (Deputy Chief Executive)
Mr. Weng lJiaxing (Deputy Chief Executive)
(resigned on 28 December 2012)
Mr. Zheng Gang
Dr. Huang Jiaging
Mr. Chen Jin Shan

Non-executive director:

Dr. Wong Yu Man, James

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne
Prof. Hu Shanlian

Prof. Lu Chuanzhen

Mr. Weng Jiaxing was resigned with effective on 28 December 2012.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Dr. Jiang Tao, Mr. Zheng Gang and Mr. Chen Jin
Shan, the executive directors of the Company, will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

general meeting.

The biographical details of the directors and senior management
are set on pages 18 to 20 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, the executive director of the Company and
chairman of the Board has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 February
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Dr. Jiang Tao has been appointed as an executive director by way
of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 3 January 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Zheng Gang has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period of
one year commencing from 1 August 2007 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Mr. Chen Jin Shan has been appointed as an executive director
by way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 25 April 2006 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

Dr. Huang Jiaging has been appointed as an executive director by
way of a letter of appointment with the Company for a period
of one year commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other

party not less than one month’s notice in writing.

EFERHEaH
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Dr. Wong Yu Man,

non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the

James, has been appointed as the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 20 March
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director by way of a letter of appointment with the
Company for a period of one year commencing from 1 November
2007 which will continue thereafter until terminated by either
party giving to the other party not less than one month’s notice in

writing.

Prof. Hu Shanlian and Prof. Lu Chuanzhen have been appointed
as independent non-executive directors by way of letters
of employment with the Company for a period of one year
commencing from 30 July 2009 which will continue thereafter
until terminated by either party giving to the other party not less

than one month’s notice in writing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected transactions”,
no contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

Disclosure of Interests

(a) Directors’ interests and short positions in the securities
of the Company and its associated corporations
As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the required standards of dealings by directors of the
Company as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM

Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Interests in shares:

EERERTHRARMNBRG - HER
BRIRREEZED

L §=30 4

(a) EERFLFRAMEBEIEZESZE
2RKE
R-ZE-—=F=A=+—HB ERQATES
REZBFTHRABEARD A REEAIAEE
ZE(EEREFRBERMN (TBHF R
HAERHI ) EXVER) 2R 10 - HHEARR 1D &
BEFPREEREFFRPEKRME3S2
HREBRARQARGFEZRRMAH 2 ER
R#A  RRBAIER EHHRBIES 6%
S6MRFTMANREBETEENRE
ZREBHERDNARBRAZER R
BWT:

() R #zx:

Approximate

percentage

Nature Number of the total

Name of director of interest of shares Position issued shares
HERT

BRipfEBZ

EEfR EanE Bin&H B Byaost
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong Corporate interest (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long 11.16%
FE=EE AEERE (M) 120,960,500 LS} 11.16%
Personal interest (Note 2) 235,046,875 Long 21.68%

BARER (HfaE2) 235,046,875 #E 21.68%

Mr. Zheng Gang Personal interest 2,000,000 Long 0.18%
R4 S 4 (PN 2,000,000 R 0.18%



(11)

Note 1: These shares are held through Easeglory Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, the entire issued share
capital of which is owned by Marshal International
Investments Limited which is in turn wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong.

Note 2: The 235,046,875 shares represent (i) the 136,546,875
shares beneficially owned by Mr. Yung Kwok Leong,
and (ii) the 98,500,000 convertible preference shares.

Interests in share options under Post-IPO share option
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EEEHE

HERMTIERZRBERER
DA (RRBELFSEMR
N2BERLRE)EE  ZBRER
BERLBEzEHEBHTRAEAH
BHEBRREGRARDES
MBHFERREERARIIHA
PESEEZEERER

$235,046,875R IR 2 15 () B R
REEBERERZ2136,546,875
R IR 1% 5 R (ii)98,500,000% AJ
BB LR -

(i) BRAHRERBKRETZET Z

scheme: B
Number of
Exercise share options
Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
=14
EERS TER fTER MEENE A
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,700,000 Long
29 March 2019
SEREE —EENFNA=TRE 0.503% 7T 1,700,000 ##&
—E-hF=ZAZ=+HhH
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 800,000 Long
29 March 2019
BREL “EZNFENA=THE 0.508 7T 800,000 &
—E-NAFZA=TH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 1,563,380 Long
22 March 2015
—E-ZEFZA-t+ZHZE 11287 1,563,380 A&
—E-AF=RFZ+ZH
1 January 2012 to HK$0.16 2,000,000 Long
31 December 2013
—E-"F-A—-HE 0.1658 7T 2,000,000 ##&

—®-=5+=A=+-8
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Number of
Exercise share options
Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
Btz
EEns TEH TR BERENE B
Mr. Zheng Gang 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 800,000 Long
29 March 2019
EREE SE 4 —EZNFAAZTHE 0.503& 7T 800,000 # &
—E-RF=ZA=+NH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 2,814,084 Long
22 March 2015
—E-ZF=ZA=+=HE 112871 2,814,084 #H#&
—E-HAFE=A=+=H
1 January 2012 to HK$0.16 6,700,000 Long
31 December 2013
—E--%-A—-HEZE 0.1638 7T 6,700,000 #HA&
—E-=%+-A=+—H
Dr. Huang Jiaging 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,000,000 Long
29 March 2019
EMEEL “EEAFAAZT+EE 0.503& 7T 1,000,000 #&
—E-hHF=A=+HhH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 312,676 Long
22 March 2015
—E-ZEFZA-t+ZHE 11287 312,676 H A&
—E-RAF=ZA=+=H
1 January 2012 to HK$0.16 1,000,000 Long
31 December 2013
—E-"Hf-A—-HE 0.1638 7T 1,000,000 #&

—ZE-=ftZA=+—H
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Number of

Exercise share options

Name of director Exercise period price granted Position
B2tz
EEns T TR HBlRENE A
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 30 September 2009 to HK$0.50 1,700,000 Long
29 March 2019
BR& ikt “EERAENAA=Z+AE 0.503% 7T 1,700,000 ##&
—E-hF=ZA=+NH
23 March 2010 to HK$1.12 2,084,507 Long
22 March 2015
“E-ZHFZA-+Z=HZE 112871 2,084,507 ##&
—E-RFE=A=+=H
1 January 2012 to HK$0.16 6,700,000 Long
31 December 2013
—E--%-A—-HEZE 0.165& 7T 6,700,000 #A&
—F-=%+=-A=+-H
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James 1 January 2012 to HK$0.16 1,000,000 Long
31 December 2013
ITHRE —E--%-A—-HEZE 0.165& 7T 1,000,000 #&

—E-=%t=A=t—H

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

MEXFIEEEN RZF—=ZF=A=+—
B ARARSEERETETHAEHELELRA
AREEMEEEIE (EEREFFRBEKEG
EXVER) Z R - MR P Sk EREE P
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(b)

Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions (b) EEBRRREMRERBHZIEER K
in shares and underlying shares g
As at 31 March 2013, other than the interests of a director RZE—=F=A=+—-H KBRLEX[E
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the ERFETHRAERERG HEBERORE
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in shares, EFz2ERD | —HMEERNARESRE
underlying shares and debentures” above, the interests ETBABZERZN U TALTRAAT
and short positions of persons in the shares and underlying BROREEROTFEEREESFRBE
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required RGIZE336MRBHA R R FE 2B LMAT
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO HeEmRKR:
were as follows:
Long positions in shares of the Company: EAFIERRZEHE:
Approximate
percentage
Number of of the total
Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares
HE BTG
Y
BRRAE iz &H - fivd 4w @HEatt
Marshal International 120,960,500 Long Beneficial owner 11.16%
Investments Limited (Note 1)
BEFEBRRERBRQT (ME) 120,960,500 3 BERBEREA 11.16%
Easeglory Holdings Limited (Note 1) 120,960,500 Long Beneficial owner 11.16%
ZEEREBRDF (M) 120,960,500 3} ESEAA 11.16%
Mrs. Yung Muk Ying (Note 1) 357,707,375 Long Interest of spouse 33.00%
SARELZ L (HEE) 357,707,375 i) BB 33.00%
Mr. Zhan Guo Tuan (Note 2) 60,000,000 Long Beneficial owner 5.54%
EEE L (FEE2) 60,000,000 3 BERERA 5.54%
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of the total

Name of shareholder shares Position Capacity issued shares

HE BTG

Bz

BREB Bin& B B 5% #Bivaask

Mrs. Lin Zhen Jin (Note 2) 60,000,000 Long Interest of spouse 5.54%

mB &zt (KEE2) 60,000,000 e BB = 5.54%

Rubyland Investments Limited 60,000,000 Long Beneficial owner 5.54%
(Note 3)

Rubyland Investments Limited 60,000,000 S, BEREBA 5.54%
(FFEE3)

Mr. Lau Kim Hung, Jack (Note 4) 66,900,000 Long Beneficial owner 6.17%

2ok (HEE4) 66,900,000 e BEREEA 6.17%

Mrs. Chan Yiu Kan, Katie (Note 4) 66,900,000 Long Interest of spouse 6.17%

BRIRE &+ (KizE4d) 66,900,000 #a fi @R = 6.17%

Notes: P EE

(1

The issued share capital of Easeglory Holdings Limited
is 100% beneficially owned by Marshal International
Investments Limited which is in turn beneficially owned by Mr.
Yung Kwok Leong, an executive director and the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. By
virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong, Mrs.
Yung Muk Ying is deemed to be interested in 120,960,500
shares held by Easeglory Holdings Limited and 136,546,875
shares and 1,700,000 share options and 98,500,000
convertible preference shares beneficially held by Mr. Yung
Kwok Leong in personal capacity.

Mr. Zhan Guo Tuan is interested in 60,000,000 shares of the
Company. Mrs. Lin Zhen Jin is deemed to be interested in
60,000,000 shares by virtue of her being the spouse of Mr.
Zhan Guo Tuan.

The issued share capital of Rubyland Investments Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability, is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Kim Hung,
Jack.

)

SRERBERARAZEBITRAZI
HEFEBRREERARNERES
MEFEEREREERAGRTIBAADF
HTEE EEEXIERTHEARSERH
SAEERBEE HREARELZLTAS
BlRAE 2B MEHERERSBE
8% A BR 2 B Fri$120,960,5008% B 15 &
HESEZEE U BASHEREEZ
136,546,8758% IR 13 ~ 1,700,00017 &8 A%
98,500,000/ T AREBER TP IESR
o

& Bl [ %5 4 7060,000,000 88 Z< 2 & B& 19
FPHREEZ HRAMBR LT HEER
ek 2 BB o B4 #E 4R 4E 7260,000,000
g Rl sk =R v

Rubyland Investments Limited ( — &
RBREZBEEIMRILIZERAT)Z
ERTRAEHAZYNELEESHE
Ao
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(4) The 66,900,000 shares represents (i) 60,000,000 shares
are held through Rubyland Investments Limited, which
is beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Kim Hung, Jack and (ii)
6,900,000 shares are held through by Bountiful Resources
limited, a company incorporated in British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which the entire issued share capital of which

is owned by Mr. Lau Kim Hung, Jack.

By virtue of her being the spouse of Mr. Lau Kim Hung,
Jack, Mrs. Chan Yiu Kan, Katie is deemed to be interested in
60,000,000 shares held by Rubyland Investments Limited and
6,900,000 shares held by Bountiful Resources Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time since incorporation of the Company were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or of any other body corporate
granted to any directors or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Pre-IPO share option scheme adopted on 20 April 2002, of
which, 237,777 outstanding share options were lapsed on 24
April 2012.

(4) 66,900,000/ % 17 35 (1)3& B 2 8l 2
S EBHEA ZRubyland Investments
Limited M #7 2 60,000,0008% B2 19 & (ii)
##3@Bountiful Resources Limited (— 4
REBEZBEESEAMALZERIA
HEHOBITRABABIBEEESR)
#4826,900,0008% % 15

HRRBES LT AR EEE TS
1R % 8 E M Rubyland Investments
Limited AT 260,000,0008% A 12 &
FiBountiful Resources Limitedff# 2
6,900,000/ IR 17 #E B #E 2 o

BREXFIREEN RZE—=F=ZA=1+—
B ARBREELAHNBEMEMAL (KD
AEERTETBRAERMN REAXTRD S
RO T EERE RS R B EMRFE3I360%F
ARARAFEZECHAE 2 EERKE-

ESMEESZEN
BREXTESREIZTHRAERKRS HER
REEEzERD | —HAREEN RNAF
B R BENEAESHEESH
ZEBIRB T N\EZ FRREEMER 2
FERETEBBAAR DAL EMEMEABE
HMROIEEFMER MRETRBTEZ
ZEA BADF HERABDREEMTHE
RATBESHREMZH HEES RES
BEBIARB TN AR FLAESEME M
EAERZZEER -

RS R AT &Y
BRAHBEABRETEDNR ST -_FN
B=+BER#M > EH237,777H 8 RITEBERAE
ER-ZE——FWMA=-+MAXM-



As at 31 March 2013, there were 110,951,287 outstanding share
options, of which, 44,051,287 and 66,900,000 were granted
pursuant to the Post-IPO share option schemes adopted on 20
April 2002 and 10 August 2011 respectively. A breakdown setting
out the number of outstanding share options, their respective
exercise price and respective exercise period under the Post-IPO

schemes were as follows:

Categories of grantees

mzeE
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EEEHE

R-ZE-—=F=/A=+—H RAFE
110,951,287 AR{TEBRKRE HAP
44,051,28712 §66,900,00018 J3 % BIARIE A =
EE_HFNA=THER=Z——F\A+HB&K
MERErRBRETEIRE -HRAD
FREAHEETHRITEBREHE HE

BZTEERTEHHANT

Exercise period

Exercise price

Number of
share options

outstanding

HERITEZ
wEBBAER fTiER fTERE BAENE
Directors
E=
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 1,700,000
PEIRLE —EZNAFEAA=THE 0.50/8 7T 1,700,000

—E-RF=ZA=+hA
Dr. Jiang Tao 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 800,000
BEEL “EEAFAAZ+HE 0.50% 7T 800,000
—E-hE=ZA=+HhAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 1,563,380
—E-THF=A-t+=HE 11287 1,563,380
—E-RFE=ZHAZ=+Z=H
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 HK$0.16 2,000,000
—E-"H-A-HE 0.16/8 T 2,000,000

—E-=%f+=ZHA=+—8
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Categories of grantees

Exercise period

Exercise price

Number of
share options

outstanding

HERITEZ
B ARER T TR MR fE®NE
Directors
BEE
Mr. Zheng Gang 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 800,000
ERE S “EEAFNRA=THE 0.507& 7T 800,000
—E-AFE=ZR=tNhA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 2,814,084
—E-ZF=ZA=-+=HZE 11287 2,814,084
—E-HEF=A=-+=H
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 HK$0.16 6,700,000
ZE-ZF—-HF—BZE 0.16/8 T 6,700,000
—F-=%+=RA=+—-H
Dr. Huang Jiaging 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2014 HK$0.50 1,000,000
BEMEEE “EEAFAR=THE 0.50/& T 1,000,000
—E-mME=ZA=-+ANA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 312,676
—ZE2-ZF=ZA=-+=HZE 1.12%8 7T 312,676
—E-HEF=ZA=+=H
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 HK$0.16 1,000,000
—E--—f—-B—HZE 0.167& 7T 1,000,000
—E-ZH+ZA=+—H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 30 September 2009 to 29 March 2019 HK$0.50 1,700,000
BR& 1L E % —EZAFNA=Z+HE 0.50%& 7T 1,700,000
—E-hAEFE=ZAZ=+NA
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 2,084,507
—E-ZEF=ZA=-+=HZE 1.12%8 7T 2,084,507
—E-RFE=ZAZ=Z+=H
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 HK$0.16 6,700,000
—E2-—f—-B—HEZE 0.167& 7T 6,700,000

—E2-=%+ZA=+—H



Categories of grantees

Exercise period
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Number of
share options

Exercise price outstanding

HERITEZ
EBAER T/ TR MERRfERE
Directors
ES
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 HK$0.16 1,000,000
ITHREBE —E-—5—-A—-HZ% 0.167& T 1,000,000
—E-=ZH+ZA=+—8H
Employees and consultants of 13 July 2006 to 12 July 2016 HK$3.61 459,739
the Group
*EEESRER —ZEERFtLtAT=HZE 3.617&7T 459,739
—E-R"EtAt+=H
21 March 2007 to 20 March 2017 HK$2.94 1,042,253
—ZEZtF=ZA=+—HZE 2,948 1,042,253
—E—+tH=ZH=+H
30 September 2009 to 29 March 2014 HK$0.50 8,200,000
—EENFNA=+HE 0.50/%8 7T 8,200,000
—E-ME=ZA=+ANAH
23 March 2010 to 22 March 2015 HK$1.12 21,574,648
—ZEZ-ZF=ZA=-+=HZ 1128 7T 21,574,648
—E-REE=ZH=+=H
1 January 2012 to 31 December 2013 HK$0.16 49,500,000
—E-ZHf—-B—HE 0.1678 7T 49,500,000
—E-=Z+ZA=+—8H
Total 45t

110,951,287
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2013, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements
and restated as appropriate, is set out on page 188. This summary

does not form part of the audited financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, the following
transactions are “connected transactions” and “continuing
connected transactions” as defined in the GEM Listing Rules and

are required to be disclosed in the annual report of the Company.
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Connected Transaction

Provision of Financial Assistance and undertakings to
connected party

With reference to the announcements dated 18 November
2011, 22 November 2011 and 15 December 2011 and the
circular of the Company dated 30 December 2011 issued
by the Company, Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain
Company Limited (“Huihao Sihai”), an indirect subsidiary
of the Group entered into a guarantee with Fujian Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. (“Fujian Huihao”) (the "Fujian
Huihao Guarantee”) jointly with Mr. Yung Kwok Leong and
his associates in favour of Agriculture Bank of China Bank
(the “ABC Bank”) to secure the obligations, liabilities and
indebtedness of Fujian Huihao to be owed to ABC Bank
under the Fujian Huihao Loan in the principal sum of RMB19

million.

Fujian Huihao is owned as 55% by Mr. Weng Jiale, a nephew
of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (a director of the Company) and a
brother of Mr. Weng Jiaxing (an ex-director of Company as
at 31 March 2013), and is thus a connected person on the

part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 March 2013, the Fujian Huihao Guarantee, the two
undertakings (“Sihai Undertaking 1” and “Sihai Undertaking
2") was completed as the Fujian Huihao Loan was fully
repaid during the year. There is no renewal of the Fujian

Huihao Guarantee and undertakings noted.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

()

Purchase of goods from and sales of goods to a
connected person

On 26 April 2012, Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited
(“Huihao HK"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into the Purchase Agreement
with Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd ("Fujian
Huihao”) to purchase certain pharmaceutical products
from Fujian Huihao for a term of three years ending
31 March 2015. On the same date, Huihao HK
entered into the Supply Agreement with Fuijian
Huihao whereby the Huihao HK and its subsidiaries
(the "Huihao Group”) have agreed to sell and deliver
certain pharmaceutical products to Fujian Huihao for a
term of three years ending 31 March 2015.

Fujian Huihao is owned as 55% by Mr. Weng lJiale, a
nephew of Mr. Yung Kwok Leong (a director of the
Company) and a brother of Mr. Weng Jiaxing (an ex-
director of the Company as at 31 March 2013), is
thus a connected person on the part of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the entering into
the Purchase Agreement, Sales Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of the transactions have been set
out in the announcement dated 26 April 2012 issued
by the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total actual
purchase transactions amount approximately HK$1.75
million (equivalent to approximately RMB1.42
million) and the total actual sales transactions
amount approximately HK$1.64 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB1.34 million).
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(ii)

Rental charge to a connected person

On 10 September 2012, Fujian Province Fuzhou City
Huihao Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Fuzhou
Huihao"”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into Tenancy Agreement with
Fujian Huihao Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited
(“FHP Chain”) for a term of three years ending 31
March 2015 in relation to the lease of office premises
and warehouses. On the same date, Fujian Huihao
Sihai Pharmaceutical Chain Company Limited (“Huihao
Sihai”), an indirectly subsidiary of the Company entered
into Tenancy Agreement with FHP Chain for a term of
three years ending 31 March 2015 in relation to the

lease of office premise and warehouse.

FHP Chain is a company established in the PRC, and
owned as to 50% by Mr. Weng Jiale (a nephew of Mr.
Yung Kwok Leong, a director of the Company and
a brother of Mr. Weng lJiaxing, an ex-director of the
Company as at 31 March 2013) and as to 50% by an
Independent Third Party and thus is a connected person
on the part of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Details of the transactions have been set out in the
announcement dated 10 September 2012 issued by the

Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the total actual
rental charge paid to FHP Chain by Fuzhou Huihao and
Huihao Sihai amount approximately HK$1.05 million

(equivalent to approximately RMB0.85 million).
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The independent non-executive directors of the
Company, Pro. Hu Shanlian, Pro. Lu Chuanzhen and
Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne have, for the purpose of
Rule 20.37 of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions, for the

reporting period, have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of

the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available
to or from (as appropriate) independent third

parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions and on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor were engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Company’s auditor have issue their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
20.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 to the Listing Rules. Since its listing on the Stock
Exchange, the Company has complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2013, save for the
exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in this

report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in hands of the

public exceeds 25% of the total number of issued shares.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2013 were audited by HLB Hodgson Imply Cheng Limited
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and

being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

The accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012 were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng. In March 2012, the practice of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng was reorganised as HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited. Accordingly, HLB Hogson Impey Cheng retired
as the auditors of the Company on 28 September 2012 and HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the auditors of
the Company on that date.

On behalf of the Board

Yung Kwok Leong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 June 2013
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/f%‘ o OERE AR A G The Landmark IR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited 11 Pedder Street FTENR
Central B ES
Hong Kong HELTITRE3E
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HETERSEEERAFZEER

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Xia
Healthcare Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to
187, which comprise the consolidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors” judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of the affairs of the Company and of
the Group's as at 31 March 2013 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 10 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
GEMBRAR

At 31 March 2013 R=&—=F=F=+—H

2013 2012
—B-=F | —F—=F%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & THET FH& T
ASSETS =5E
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME -BERZE 6 36,421 37,809
Prepaid lease payments FE{HEEMRE 7 32,036 32,986
Investment properties REYE 8 8,157 7,611
Goodwill (kS 9 788,420 788,418
865,034 866,824
Current assets mEEE
Inventories FE 12 124,038 110,553
Trade and other receivables and ESNEMERRERZRS
deposits 13 505,807 379,595
Amount due from FE U I 22 IR AR R TR 18
a non-controlling shareholder 14 - 1,841
Held-to-maturity investment BEZIBRE - 123
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA 15 69 161
Pledged bank deposits EIRFBITER 3,609 22,847
Cash and bank balances HERIBITEE 16 79,980 109,212
713,503 624,332
Total assets HEHE 1,578,537 1,491,156
EQUITY L §
Capital and reserves BER G R
Share capital &S 17 11,824 11,824
Reserves R 933,241 887,059
Equity attributable to the owners of ZLAFHEBE AELIER
the Company 945,065 898,883
Non-controlling interests FRBER 40,974 41,161
Total equity Eaued 986,039 940,044
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRAE

At 31 March 2013 R=&E—=F=F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E-C-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & F&x FH& T
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities g R =K
Trade and other payables B R HMENFRE 19 331,669 302,450
Bank borrowings RITEE 20 50,672 36,582
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAS FE IR IR R 2 R IE
shareholders 21 1,053 551
Tax payable R 11,352 8,965
394,746 348,548
Non-current liabilities EREIAER
Convertible note R EE 22 4,627 4,282
Promissory note AHEE 23 192,635 197,735
Deferred taxation IEFERL 18 24 490 547
197,752 202,564
Total liabilities BEE#EE 592,498 551,112
Total equity and liabilities RBaRA&RHEE 1,578,537 1,491,156
Net current assets mENEERE 318,757 275,784
Total assets less current liabilities BEMNERTHAR 1,183,791 1,142,608

Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June 2013 and signed
on its behalf by:

Yung Kwok Leong Jiang Tao

Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
B AR &

At 31 March 2013 R=&—=F=F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—-=fF —E-C-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B &E THET T8
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG $ 11 108,692 108,690
Current assets i BN’ E
Other receivables and deposits HihEWRIER RS 13 354 306
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA 15 69 161
Cash and bank balances e RIBITEE 8,476 24,633
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W BT /B A B FR I8 11 878,391 870,693
887,290 895,793
Total assets HEHAE 995,982 1,004,483
EQUITY ga
Capital and reserves BE R
Share capital % 2% 17 11,824 11,824
Reserves R 18 759,958 766,323
Total equity attributable to the EAFHEAEEZ
owners of the Company L ¥=% 30 771,782 778,147
LIABILITIES fafE
Current liabilities mE A |
Accruals and other payables Bt E ARk H e RRIE 19 1,452 1,543
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE M B A B mRIE 11 24,996 22,229
26,448 23,772
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Statement of Financial Position
BB AR &

At 31 March 2013 R=&E—=F=F=+—H

2013 2012
—EB—=% —E-—_F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M =E T#EIT T8t

Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Convertible note R E 22 4,627 4,282
Promissory note AHEE 23 192,635 197,735
Deferred taxation i JE 5 18 24 490 547
197,752 202,564
Total liabilities AEHEE 224,200 226,336
Total equity and liabilities BaRARAEE 995,982 1,004,483
Net current assets mDEEFRE 860,842 872,021
Total assets less current liabilities EEHERTHAS 969,534 980,711

Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June 2013 and signed
on its behalf by:

Yung Kwok Leong Jiang Tao

Director Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HETHEEZER
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE=ZE—=F=A=1+—HIFE
2013 2012
—Z—=%F —E--F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
M 5% THT FHE T
Turnover BEH 26 2,020,589 1,835,776
Cost of sales SHERE (1,781,727) (1,600,563)
Gross profit EF 238,862 235,213
Other revenue Hib R 58 26 10,376 8,689
Other income HA A 27 1,153 3,666
Selling and distribution expenses SHERDHE H (79,677) (78,500)
Administrative expenses THB X (86,354) (74,049)
Loss on early redemption of REBRANEE ZEE "
promissory note (1,389) — ]
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— R B QR Z W& 36 - 611 Bﬁ
Profit from operations BEEXEERN 27 82,971 95,630 f%
Finance costs 85 % 30 (10,288) (11,223 %
:
Profit before taxation FRiR AT 72,683 84,407 N
Taxation Bi@ 31 (22,141) (26,378) 2
_FH
-
Profit for the year XEERR 50,542 58,029
Other comprehensive income, Hth2ZEUA - IRRIE:
net of tax:
Exchange differences on BERIKEER ZEREZ5E
translating foreign operations 2,441 10,726
Total comprehensive income EEEREBAEE
for the year 52,983 68,755
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AR HEER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 ZE=ZF—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—Z=Ff —E-C-F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Ff &£ THET FET
Profit attributable to: G :
Owners of the Company ELAFHEBEA 42,740 49,666
Non-controlling interests FEERER 7,802 8,363
50,542 58,029
Total comprehensive income 2 EY AR
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ERNFHEEBA 44,898 59,312
Non-controlling interests FEERER 8,085 9,443
52,983 68,755
Earnings per share attributable to ZFAFHEAEGSERET
the owners of the Company
— basic — &K 33 HK3.61 cents#{l HK4.20 centsi& 1l
— diluted -8 33 HK3.56 cents®fll |  HK4.19 centsi{l

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMIME A ZERe M HRTR 2 — D

consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 &

Attributable to the owners of the Company

o=

+—=

F=ZRA=T—-HIEFE

LG PN
Share-based Non-
Share Share Capital Special  Translation payment  Convertible Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  note reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests equity
HUEhE
114 THE
23 EBRER REfH FRGE ERERE EST FRER BERR REEH Mt FERER #aeN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TR TER TET TiEn TiEn TiEn TEx TEL
(Note (c)) (Note (a)) (Note (d) (Note (¢)) (Note (f) (Note (b))
(i) (i) (K¥iE(d) (Hi(e) (BzE() (Hit(b)
At 1 April 2011 R=2-——£MmA-R 591,219 190,250 5 (6,735) 15,11 11,801 2,537 7,158 25,651 836,992 39,706 876,698
Other comprehensive income ~~ AFEEMR2EUA
for the year, net of tax NBHE:
Exchange difference on AEENERZ
translating foreign ERZR
operations - - - - 9,646 - - - - 9,646 1,080 10,726
Profit for the year REEET - - - - - - - - 49,666 49,666 8,363 58,029
Total comprehensive income ~ AEERERALE
for the year - - - - 9,646 - - - 49,666 59,312 9,443 68,755
Release upon disposal of REE-BHBLRE
a subsidiary 53 o o o o (611) - - - - (611) (1,432) (2,083)
Capital reorganisation RAER (579,395) - 579,395 - - - - - - - - -
Issue of share options RTERE - - - - - 3,190 B - - 3,190 = 3,190
Share options cancelled SHERE - - - - - (129) - - 129 = = S
Transfer to statutory reserve  BREETRE - - - - - - - 10307 (10,307) - - -
Dividend paid to non- R FFERER 2
controlling interests RE - - - - - - - - - - (6,556) (6,556)
At 31 March 2012 and
1 April 2012
Zg-ZEMA-R 11,84 190,250 579,395 (6,735) 24,146 14,862 253 17,465 65,139 898,883 41,161 940,044
Other comprehensive income ~ AEEHMEERA
for the year, net of tax NBHE:
Exchange difference on BEENERZ
translating foreign EXER
operations - - - - 2,158 - - - - 2,158 283 2441
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - - - 42,740 42,740 7,802 50,542
Total comprehensive income ~ AEERERALE
for the year - - - - 2,158 - - - 42,740 44,898 8,085 52,983
Issue of share options BBRE - - - - - 1,284 - = B 1,284 = 1,284
Transfer to statutory reserve  BREETRE - - - - - - - 7,989 (7,989) - - -
Dividend paid to non- R FFERER 2
controlling interests RE - - - - - - - - - - (8,272) (8,272)
At 31 March 2013
11,824 190,250 579,395 (6,735) 26,304 16,146 2,531 25454 99,890 945,065 40,974 986,039
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 ZE=ZF—=F=A=+—HIFE

Notes:

Included in the special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$2,935,000 of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of a subsidiary acquired

pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001.

The decrease in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$41,580,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2007.

The increase in special reserve amounting to approximately
HK$31,910,000 of the Group represents the difference between the
fair value and the contracted value of consideration shares paid for
acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2008.

As stipulated by the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC shall set
aside 10% of its net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (except where the reserve balance has reached 50%
of the subsidiaries’ paid-up capital). The reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the board of directors and by the relevant

authority, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

The increase in capital reserve amounting to approximately
HK$579,395,000 of the Group as the result of capital reorganisation
taken by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2012.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.

B & -

T A& B 45 Bl 5% 18 2 £92,935,00078 JT g AR
ARBIZROAEEER ST FEITER
BARBRKE -—XHMEATRABIE =5

RNEE 2455 BFHER 2 %41,580,000% 7T » iR
VEREIEBE—STtE=A=1T—HILEE
ABEBHB AR 2 EARERD 2D FEEL
EEBZZERE-

REE 245 B REE R IN4931,910,00058 7t » 2
MEEREBEE-_EENE=A=1T—HLEFE
ABEHB AR 2 E A RERND 2D FHEEL
EEBZEZR-

RIBPEMEEEEREZRZAE  RPEKY
ZARE MR B AR 10% BRI RAR R
ERBREES (RIERBERCEEWEL
AIBMERERZS0%) FESEREHERTE
BitER REESE T AFERERFERENR
BINEA

REBERNFHBIEMNA579,395,000/8 T J5H
RAERARBE_T——F=A=+—HIHF
EETRAZAME -

ERERERESIER 2MBRRMEE
ZIENEERE - ZREDRIBMEIME 2
SRR MR



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EEDmEER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE=ZE—=F=A=1+—HIFE

The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange the grant of the relevant
options over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The amount is
recognised as staff costs and related expenses with a corresponding

increase in the share-based payment reserve.

The share-based payment reserve which is expired would be released
directly to retained profits.

The convertible note reserve represents the equity components of
the convertible note issued. Convertible note issued are split into
their redemption option, liability and equity components at initial
recognition at the fair values of the convertible note, which is
determined by independent qualified professional valuers.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

(e) HUBRHBERZARBEERBRINEEARS
HA ) P9 3 A A BB R FE T ik BT S T I ER 2 AR
BN FE BAHDUBRENMIHBEH 2
ATEAFEEE ZEEBRARETINAEAR
HE B8 32 - I AR FE I 0 DABR 40 5 B 2 A i
e

URODBER 2 SRRBERESEZEERE
REBEF]

f) ABRREEFEECHTIVARIEE2ES
BB BERTURREBERASERB AR
REEAFEI HEBEDHE SERERA
7 HEATFERBYSEREXMEMETE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 ZE=ZF—=F=A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—®—= —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EXBEZIERE
Profit before taxation BR B A1 & A 72,683 84,407
Adjustments for: FEIER
Interest income FE g A (3,040) (3,168)
Interest expenses FEBEX 10,288 11,223
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments RS RIE 1,224 1,209
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERREBITE 10,545 9,963
Fair value change of investment properties REVERNFEEY (492) (1,335)
Fair value change of derivative financial TEEeMIENTFEEZE
instruments 92 271
Loss on early redemption of promissory note REERALZZEBEZER 1,389 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEVX BRERZHEZEE
equipment 276 244
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBNE QR ZWE - (611)
Provision for impairment loss of trade and g 5 & Hfth FE 1B
other receivables REEERE 989 927
Reversal of provision for impairment loss of B RHEMEWRRIEZ
trade and other receivables WEEERERE (551) (2,308)
Share-based payment expenses UM AERZAREX 1,284 3,190
Operating cash inflows before movements in CELETRBAEERTR
working capital 94,687 104,012
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (&m), R (13,485) 1,045
Increase in trade and other receivables B REMEKRIERIZRESIEM
and deposits (126,650) (60,307)
Increase in trade and other payables B R HEMBENFRIEE M 29,219 58,285
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from FEUIEIE IR IR R 2 FE
a non-controlling shareholder GRA) /& 1,841 (1,841)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operations (% (FA) FiiSH<EE (14,388) 101,194
Withholding tax refund/(paid) 2R, (Bf)ENH 612 (2,688)
Overseas tax paid BB IE (20,423) (24,116)
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEK (FTR) /FBReFEHA
operating activities (34,199) 74,390




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE=ZE—=F=A=1+—HIFE

2013 2012
—2—=F =F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT FHBT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®EFBHZHRERE
Interest received 2 WA= 3,040 1,324
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BERRE (9.242) (15,217)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEBEMNEERE (60) (510)
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BEREZZHERE T (123)
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries U EEHI B A T =2
RERANFHE - 742
Net cash outflow from deregistered of BB —EMBARZ
a subsidiary BEmHFHE o (1,432)
Proceeds from disposal of held-to-maturity HEREZRIHKREZ
investments FR&FE 123 -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFTRAE S FE (6,139) (15,216)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIEFEBIZE&RE
Interest paid EFFE (6,432) (7,358)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits BIRARITETRD () 19,238 (9,038)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ENFEREZRE (7,770) (6,556)
Redemption of promissory note HE 5] 7 5 = 4 (10,000) =
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEREBRE 53,138 91,579
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEX (39,048) (104,191)
Net cash generated from/(used in) METBHRE (A RLFE
financing activities 9,126 (35,564)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRSSEEEH (RD),
cash equivalents BB (31,212) 23,610
Cash and cash equivalents at FOMZHReRB&HERA
the beginning of the year 109,212 77,227
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes JME&FE R &) o 5/ & 1,980 8,375
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRZASRBEE£SETRE
end of the year 79,980 109,212
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBeSEHFEARBRSM
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances HERIBITER 79,980 109,212

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 28
May 2001 as an exempted company with limited liability. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is located at 19/F., New Wing, 101 King's Road, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the functional currency of the

Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company while
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
general hospital services and pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountant (the “HKICPA").

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxed
- Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Underlying Assets

LFRHE
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EREEMALA " REREZERA
Bl RAARRHBEEBHERIMER
DR (TEERPr]) RIZEMR (TRIZEMR]) £
M o A B E i ## 5 & & Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° Zx
RAZBEPREERBEBIEE R MEN
REBREBEI01HRHEI9E-

REMBHRRIDUAQXT 2HEE B
2%

al

ARAR-—EAREERQT MENBEL
AEBEREARLNE ([FE])#E
REGSHBRERBERENH B R D H
DR B S EEHEEER -

ERMIIREESITTEEME
BEEN([FRMBEREE

All)

RAEE AEBMEEAUTHE B

AR ([EBESMAE]) BHZHET
REIETER BT RBE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
The application of the new and revised HKFRSs has had

no material effect on the Group’s financial performance

and positions for the current and prior years and/or

the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial

statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

(Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS10, HKFRS 11 and

HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Government Loans?

Disclosure — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures*

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities?

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?
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FE([FEMBREEN])
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERHAIREBITERMBE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING FEAN ([FEMBREEN])
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") — continued — 18
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Financial Statements BB ENEE UERRZEN-Hiz

- Presentation of Items of (BT &) HlEEE 225
Other Comprehensive Income'’
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits? ERSTELE195E EERAL
(Z2—-%)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statement? ERSTELES BUMEHRR
(Z2-——-%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint BREITENESE REZEATRGELEY
Ventures? (Z2——F) R&?
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial BB ERNENE BASHENENEERH
Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting CEHEN) IE: 25— REa %
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities? BERMBEEZE
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — BBPRREER ABMEREEN-EE
2011 Cycle? CEHEN) NEFEZE-——FHH
ZEEWE
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of BB (BARNERER BABSEERRZAR
a Surface Mine?2 BZE8) 2B P A
#20%%;
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 U RZE——FtA—HAZERBRZF
E AR £
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R-ZEBE—=F—HA—HAZEHBZE
2013 EHI R A
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January E R-Z-—NF—B—HRXZEBKBRZF
2014 EHE LN
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 R-ZE—RF—F—HRIZEFEBRZF
2015 EHEEN
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EHMERESENFOESLSMTA
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the N_EBEEBNFRMG2E B IFRELER
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS BB A B EREEY BRI EZH
9 was amended in 2010 to include requirements for the HE - BEMEHREEAFIOREN = —
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for EEEHETULEBREEEVEAEGES E

derecognition. RIAEREEBUERIZZRE



Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortized cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortized cost
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.

B 5 R R MY &
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments — continued

o With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss was presented in profit or

loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a significant impact on the amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has

been completed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011)
and HKAS 28 (2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described

below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements. HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is, control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes
a new definition of control that contains three elements: (a)
power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c)
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has

been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.
HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified.
HK (SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn
upon the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint
ventures, depending on the rights and obligations of the
parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31,
there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled
entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11
are required to be accounted for using the equity method
of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under
HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method of

accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12

are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance

on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

ERHITREESITEEMBR
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures

- continued

These five standards, together with the amendments relating
to the transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application
permitted provided all of these standards are applied at the

same time.

The directors anticipate that these five standards will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2013. The application of
these five standards may have significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements. However,
the directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of
the impact of the application of these standards and hence

have not yet quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; it applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more
extensive than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-
level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets

and liabilities within its scope.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement — continued

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the application of the
new standard may affect certain amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements and result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the
related disclosures

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of

set-off” and “simultaneous realization and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about rights of offset and related arrangements
(such as collateral posting requirements) for financial
instruments under an enforceable master netting agreement

or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and interim
periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should
be provided retrospectively for all comparative periods.
However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with

retrospective application required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKFRS 7 and HKAS 32 Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and the

related disclosures - continued

The directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in more
disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities in the future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a statement
of comprehensive income is renamed as a statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income and an income
statement is renamed as a statement of profit or loss. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items of other
comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories
in the other comprehensive income section: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on
the same basis. The amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either

before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items
of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting

periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011
Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2013.

Amendments to HKFRSs include:

. amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial

Statements;

o amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and

Equipment; and

° amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:

Presentation.

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the financial
statements when it voluntarily provides comparative
information beyond the previous period. The additional
comparative information does not need to contain a

complete set of financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
Amendments to HKAS 1 - continued

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period must be presented when an entity changes
its accounting policies; makes retrospective restatements
or makes reclassifications, and that change has a material
effect on the statement of financial position. However, the
related notes to the opening statement of financial position
as at the beginning of the preceding period are not required
to be presented. The directors do not anticipate that the
amendments will have a significant financial impact on the

Group.

Amendments to HKAS 16

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-
by equipment and servicing equipment should be classified
as property, plant and equipment when they meet the
definition of property, plant and equipment in HKAS 16 and
as inventory otherwise. The directors do not anticipate that
the amendments to HKAS 16 will have a significant effect on

the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax
on distributions to holders of an equity instrument and
transaction costs of an equity transaction should be
accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes.
The directors anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32
will have no material effect on the Group’s consolidated

financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) - continued
HK (IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the

Production Phase of a Surface Mine

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine applies to waste removal costs that are
incurred in surface mining activity during the production
phase of the mine (production stripping costs). Under
the interpretation, the costs from this waste removal
activity (stripping) which provide improved access to ore is
recognised as a non-current asset (stripping activity asset)
when certain criteria are met, whereas the costs of normal
on-going operational stripping activities are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories. The stripping
activity asset is accounted for as an addition to, or as an
enhancement of, an existing asset and classified as tangible
or intangible according to the nature of the existing asset of

which it forms part.

HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Specific transitional provisions
are provided to entities that apply HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 for the
first time. However, HK (IFRIC) — Int 20 must be applied to
production stripping costs incurred on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented. The application of this
standard may have significant impact on amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
directors have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the
impact of the application of this standard and hence have

not yet quantified the extent of the impact.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results and the financial

position of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”), which is a collective term that includes all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(the “Interpretations”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”).

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by the
Group and the Company in the preparation of the financial

statements is set out below:

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial assets (including derivative financial
instruments), financial liabilities and investment properties
that are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration of given in

exchange for assets.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of

an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if
the Company had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a

jointly controlled entity.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at

the acquisition date, except that:

(i) deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

(i) liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment transactions of the acquiree or the
replacement of an acquiree’s share-based payment
transactions with share-based payment transactions of
the Group are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

(iii) assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or another measurement basis required by

another standard.

3.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

When the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the

acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Business combinations — continued

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the

synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the

determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of

an associate is described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of the voting
power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members
of the board of directors; or to cast majority of votes at the

meetings of the board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of financial position at cost less any impairment
loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyers, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over the

goods sold.

Revenue from provision of hospital service is recognised

when the services are provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash
flows discounted at original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is

recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an

3.
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operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the DESELER BB -
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee A EBERBAEA

Assets held under finance assets are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are charged directly to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

Rental payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental

expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of the property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is

capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, using the straight line method, over
their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates are as
follows:
Building Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 33%

Motor vehicles 20%

Office equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill,
intangible assets with indefinite lives)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liabilities method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of the other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except when it relates
to items charged or credited directly or equity, in which case

the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Taxation — continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities

on a net basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace. The accounting
policies adopted in respect of each category of financial

assets are set out below.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

3.
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Financial instruments — continued EMTH-—&
Financial assets — continued MESE-—#&
Loans and receivables B REKE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less any identified impairment losses.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group has the positive intention and

ability to hold to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on

financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
generally classified into other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities

and equity instruments are set out below.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

initial recognition.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Convertible note

Convertible note issued by the Company that contain both
financial liability and equity components are classified
separately in respective liability and equity components
on initial recognition. On initial recognition, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible note and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, respecting the embedded call option for the
holder to convert the bond into equity, is included in equity

(convertible note reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible note is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible note reserve until the embedded option is
exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
note reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible note reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the proceeds. Transactions
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to convertible note reserve. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the

convertible note using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity - continued

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to

the issue of the financial guarantee contract.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid or payable is recognised in consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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31 March 2013 Z&—=F=H=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

f,

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the companies now comprising the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates (the
“functional currency”). The combined financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the functional and presentation currency of the

Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of their fair

value gain or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

1.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the companies
now comprising the Group (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency

as follows:

(@) Assets and liabilities are translated at the closing

rate;

(b) Income and expenses are translated at average

exchange rates; and

(c)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments,
are taken to owners’ equity. When a foreign operation
is sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the

closing rate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Current assets and liabilities

Current assets are expected to be realised within twelve
months of the end of the reporting period or in the normal
course of the Group’s operating cycle. Current liabilities are
expected to be settled within twelve months of the end of
the reporting period or in the normal course of the Group's

operating cycle.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash in hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

obligation.

Employee benefits

i Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the period in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated

at their present values.
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31 March 2013 Z&—=F=H=+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits - continued

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds as
required under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and to the state-managed
retirement benefits schemes for the employees of the
Group's overseas entities are recognised as an expense
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as incurred.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal

plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the binominal
lattice model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the share
options, the total estimated fair value of share options
is spread over the vesting period, taking into account

the probability that the options will vest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEgHBRFHE-&
POLICIES - continued

Employee benefits — continued EEEF &
iv.  Share-based payment expenses — continued iv. URDAEBARZEX-&
During the vesting period, the number of share REBHR SRJTEHEEZE
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any REHE RBETFERAZREST
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised AFEZEAARIINE FTAHE
in prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated BERNFEZFEIEHERRER K
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the FEREREXHABIE —BEE"
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify WA E A E TR RGN Al
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding Alfm-MNEBH BIRA—EXHZ
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the REDTFURAZE URREBZE
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect REREHE (ERERREBTE
the actual number of share options that vest (with AEPEFAEE) MR U8 R R 3 BB
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) KRR BzTmEEBEZEBRMY
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving AIBR N e IR AN FREE TS RN E AN P ;Hmﬁ
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the BREEEREETHR(EHER Bﬁ
Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in RO AERE) RERERER (EH
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised BEERBZRERAE) AL af
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) S
or the option expires (when it is released directly to =
retained profits). §
N
2
Borrowing costs B _‘;
Borrowing costs are interests and other costs incurred in ERATEERAESEE2FERHEAM #
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs A FIERRRAIRELEREERS
are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive 2HERZKRIEK-

income in the period in which the costs are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type of class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

Investment properties
Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income being

negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties under construction have been
accounted for in the same way as completed investment
properties. Specifically, construction costs incurred for
investment properties under construction are capitalised
as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction. Investment properties under
construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the investment properties under construction and their
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Investment properties — continued

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the

year in which the item is derecognised.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash

flows of the financial assets have been impacted.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

(b) default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 7 to 90 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted

at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Impairment of financial assets - continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Related Parties Transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES - continued

Related Parties Transactions — continued

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction

when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between

related parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies

which are described in Note 3, management has made

certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the

reporting period, that may have a significant risk in causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units are determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions

underlying the value-in-use calculations.

Impairment of trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade debtors is reviewed
on a regular basis to ensure that the trade debtor
balances are collectible and follow up actions are
promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods have
been exceeded. However, from time to time, the
Group may experience delays in collection. Where
recoverability of trade debtor balances are called into
doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts
are made based on credit status of the customers,
the aged analysis of the trade receivable balances and
write-off history. Certain receivables may be initially
identified as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of
the related receivable to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Changes in the collectability
of trade receivables for which provisions are not made

could affect our results of operations.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(c)

(d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expenses to
be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time
the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also perform annual reviews on whether the

assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.

Impairment of non-current assets

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying
amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an
assessment of the carrying amount of that asset will
be performed. Triggering events include significant
adverse changes in the market value of an asset,
changes in the business or regulatory environment, or
certain legal events. The interpretation of such events
requires judgment from management with respect
to whether such an event has occurred. Upon the
occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts
of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their
carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the
present value of estimated net future cash flows which
the Group expects to generate from the future use of
the asset, plus the assets residual value on disposal.
Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets
is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is
recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable

amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY - continued

(e)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions

in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The

outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Measurement of convertible note

On issuance of convertible note, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in the convertible notes reserve, net
of transaction costs. The splitting of the liability and
equity components requires an estimation of the

market interest rate.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

4. FHRFRERARZERRE
— iR

(e)

(f)

FieMEREERTR
AEBAXNTRREZEENRE
Bo-MEEMSHEBESEZE &
EEHERAH RAEXEKBRE
HoAREHBRZEY R RERIE
ERABENRZ R E -HZF
EENRABBERERATHEE
TE FREZESTEFEHREN
S P B P 15 50 R 3 SE A5 TR R4 o

EEEERRTRAREEZHAIM
T8 5K T AJ LA 85 R 2R B9 FERR B
FBER AeRAEZSHESTEHE
RBBIBRBBENELEHREEE
BEREANGERIBRE-

RiRRIEZEE
BROTUBRBREER - SERINA
FEDIRBEASFTITRREENT
SHRMEE MR RBHER
RIMERMEBE BEERHEERSR
FEERERD L - FIRKERN
BRRXZEAE SIEEZCHEIL
SATREEERENRKRE D
MEERRERDEEZEAH TS
MRz fh5te

ErHEEEHREE
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31 March 2013 Z&—=F=H=+—H

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY - continued

(g) Measurement of fair value of equity-settled
transactions
The Company operates share option schemes under
which employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payment transactions. The cost of these equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted,
using assumptions including expected volatility and
risk free interest rate. Such cost is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will

ultimately vest.

(h) Measurement of promissory note
The fair value of promissory note is determined using
an estimated interest rate and the amount is carried on

amortised cost basis until extinguished or redemption.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported internally to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group
has merged its organisation into two operating divisions:
provision of general hospital services, pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain
business. The chief operating decision maker has decided
to combine the provision of general hospital service and the
provision of healthcare and hospital management services
into one single operation division in order to manage and
review the performance of the hospital related business
more efficiently. These divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its segment information.

4. GHTAREERRZEERE

— iR
(9) BESHERZZLFHEHHE

RRTREBRETE Bt NE
HES (BEES) URHOTRRZ
MK - B & 2 LA 45
EXZHBATDRERHERNR
FE EREEERRERERR
NEREBRMAE - BREAKE  ERE
ARSI RS R
BEITZHERNER REHRSH
REREBRAYLBERUAERER
REMEIANRERS EXAEH
HEBHTANERBEBENRAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued
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31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

SHWEH-&

Segment revenue and results DHEBBRER
2013 =
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
ENHBER
FHLIREN
Ritman TEEHE
BERERY E L4 Ha e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THT THET
Turnover EEE
External sales HIMEE 141,525 1,879,064 - 2,020,589
Inter-segment sales SEEHEE - 6,305 (6,305) -
Total turnover FbE 141,525 1,885,369 (6,305) 2,020,589
Inter-segment sales are charged at 2 EREHEH R
arm'’s length AYEEKE
Results E 1 |
Segment results DEEE 21,065 74,369 - 95,434
Unallocated other revenue ROE 2 Hi kR -
Loss on early redemption of REBEAZREBEZEE
promissory note (1,389)
Unallocated corporate expenses APBzEELH (11,074)
Profit from operations REZEHEA 82,971
Finance costs BHEHR (10,288)
Profit before taxation BB AR R 72,683
Taxation BB (22,141)
Profit for the year KEERF 50,542

ErHEEEHREE
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Provision of

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. PEEHE &
Segment assets and liabilities SHEERAR
2013 —E—Z=F

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
pharmaceutical

general hospital retail chain
services business Consolidated
EMHER
FHURED
s Rt AY SEEHE
S LT E ¥% B8
é HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
’g TET TET TET
o
o
% Consolidated statement of financial position & B # ikl &
Z
< Assets HE
@ Segment assets NEEE 178,324 1,390,470 1,568,794
= Unallocated corporate assets APBZLEEE 9,743
§
8 Consolidated total assets GREERE 1,578,537
2
< Liabilities R
= Segment liabilities PRAR 23,116 367,234 390,350
; Promissory note REEE 192,635
< Convertible note RREE 4,627
g Deferred taxation ELHIE 490
= Unallocated corporate liabilities AAMeCEEE 4,396
Consolidated total liabilities RAEBREHE 592,498
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31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued

2013

Provision of

SHEEH-®
SHRERAR-W

—E—Z=F

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

pharmaceutical

general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
EMHBR
FHLUREN
RftGAH SEEHE
ERRE % AR #e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT TET
Other information Kt #
Capital expenditure BERMX 7,026 2,276 - 9,302
Depreciation e 6,193 3,932 420 10,545
Amortisation of prepaid lease BAEENERH
payments 1,042 182 - 1,224
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERZEZ
equipment BE - 276 - 276
Provision for impairment loss of trade Z &R EMERTEZ
and other receivables HEFERE - 989 - 989

ErHEEEHREE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued 5. FWEH-@
Segment revenue and results DHEBBRER
2012 —E—_F
Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and
Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Eliminations Consolidated
EMHBER
PEUKEY
REEEN SEEHE
m
S BRR® % H e
S HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S TR TExT TEx TR
’_
o
(@]
o
= Turnover 141
= External sales HorpuE 134,504 1,701,272 - 1,835,776
% Inter-segment sales PEEHE - 10,875 (10,875) =
<
o
"‘,:J Total turnover MR 134,504 1,712,147 (10,875) 1,835,776
=
—
w
9 Inter-segment sales are charged at PEBHENR
[ arm’s length NFEERES
(@]
=
E Results E 1 |
e Segment results DEEE 21,463 86,994 = 108,457
=
<
w
i Unallocated other revenue KTz E s 69
§ Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE— RS AR 2 W 611
2 Unallocated corporate expenses AAMZLELH (13,507)
Profit from operations BEEHEF 95,630
Finance costs BEER (11,223)
Profit before taxation BB AR 84,407
Taxation BB (26,378)
Profit for the year REERA 58,029
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SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities

2012

5. FWEH -\

SHRERAR

oo — e

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and
distribution and

Provision of pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
Services business Consolidated
BYIRER
oA R )
BitRen ZEBHEE
BRERE % 7a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TERT TExT
Consolidated statement of financial position & B # ikl &
Assets BE
Segment assets PEEE 174,651 1,290,279 1,464,930
Unallocated corporate assets APEEERE 26,226
Consolidated total assets RREEMHE 1,491,156
Liabilities B
Segment liabilities PEEE 22,880 321,178 344,058
Promissory note ALEE 197,735
Convertible note CIE: Y ES 4,282
Deferred taxation BRI IE 547
Unallocated corporate liabilities RoBEeLEER 4,490
Consolidated total liabilities BAEERE 551,112

ErHEEEHREE
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued

2012

SHEH-®
SHRERAR-W

—E—_F

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

distribution and

Provision of  pharmaceutical
general hospital retail chain
services business Unallocated Consolidated
BB R
28R EY
REEH ZEEHE
B RS %% AOE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Other information Hfth & #
Capital expenditure BEARMX 11,255 4,461 11 15,727
Depreciation nE 5,504 4,022 437 9,963
Amortisation of prepaid BAAHERESH
lease payments 1,030 179 - 1,209
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BRERZEZ
plant and equipment BE 35 209 = 244
Provision for impairment loss of B 5 Kk HbEWFIE
trade and other receivables WEBERE 44 878 5 927




Notes to the Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
Note 3. Segment results represent the profit generated by
each segment without allocation of finance costs, loss on
early redemption of promissory note, gain on disposal of a
subsidiary and taxation. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purpose of resource

allocation and assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include part of property, plant
and equipment, cash and bank balances of the central
administration companies. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 10.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate liabilities, promissory note,
convertible note and deferred taxation. Unallocated
corporate liabilities mainly include the accruals
and other payables of the central administration

companies.

Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC. All of
the Group’s turnover is derived from customers based in the
PRC.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

DHREHE-#E

A% 2 B BOR B 3 AT 2 A
EEEHE B - D BEAEEDEE
£ RR THRUBEA REEEE
REE R HE— R A2
RBUEZ A IR EFRIERD BR
RGO ETEERRERE 2R

REZSERARS B ENERMS :

e BRRIBEXEEN MAEEEY
TEREARED R - AIBELEE
EXEERPREEQT 2O
X BERRE RERBTHEHR
BUMFE IO HEE 2 EET

HEHE

s KBRARIBEEERE EAALRE AR
BREBRIELEBESN IERED
TEEAREIBE-KIELXE
BEEREPREEQT ZEAHE
PR R LAt B A SRR ©

WERH
REBEBETEURPE - ANEB 2T
BEXBEIREPRAZER -
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION - continued

Geographical information - continued
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

SHEH-®
= W -

UTHAREENMBEEIM 2R E

EZAREE D

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

ERBREZIERE
2013 2012
—E—Z=F —E2-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Hong Kong BB 416 836
PRC a3 864,618 865,988
865,034 866,824

Information about major customers FREEERZEH

For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, no single

customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's turnover.

BE-F-=FR=-"F-——-F=A=1-
ALFE BEE-FFHAKECEX

HER10%H U E-
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. MR -BERMM
The Group . -
Furniture Leasehold Machinery and Motor Office
Building  and fixtures improvements  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
BF RARKE HEMRKE HRRER RE  BOERMR i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

ThRL ThRL ThRL ThRL TARL TARL ThRL

Cost BF
At 1 April 2011 R=B--F
MA-H 5,595 3,474 19,489 19,570 9,442 18,912 76,482
Additions RE - 343 8,357 1,729 1,419 3,369 15,217
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—BNE A - - - - 116 Al 387
Exchange realignment ERHE 199 122 668 693 263 605 2,550
Disposals HE - (26) (133) = (104) (529) (792)
At 31 March 2012 and RZB-ZfF
1 April 2012 ZA=+-AR
—Z-"F¥QmA-H 5,794 3913 28,381 21,992 11,136 22,628 93,844
Additions NE - 119 3,722 3,015 492 1,894 9,242 o
Exchange realignment ERRE 39 26 188 148 61 142 604 o
Disposals HE - - (231) - (264) (556) (1,051) B
St
At 31 March 2013 RZE-Z% L
=
ZR=+-H 5,833 4,058 32,060 25,155 11,425 24,108 102,639 f
=
Depreciation and impairment #i & R # {& “’;j
At 1 April 2011 R=B-—F
mA—-A 706 2,804 9,864 17,057 5,200 9,413 45,044 =
Provided for the year KEERE 172 257 3,276 1,529 1,514 3215 9,963 o
Written back on disposals HEREE - (18) (133) = (35) (362) (548) S
Exchange realignment ERA% 28 101 363 620 151 313 1,576 ®
.FH
At 31 March 2012 and R=B-=F =
1 April 2012 ZA=t+-AR
—E-"FNA-H 906 3,144 13,370 19,206 6,830 12,579 56,035
Provided for the year KEERE 174 38 4711 1,079 1,246 2,950 10,545
Written back on disposals HEREE - - (231) - (208) (336) (775)
Exchange realignment EHHRE 7 23 113 137 40 93 413
At 31 March 2013 RZB-Z%
ZRA=+-H 1,087 3,552 17,963 20,422 7,908 15,286 66,218
Net book values BRESE
At 31 March 2013 RZ8-=
=ZB=+-H 4,746 506 14,097 4,733 3,517 8,822 36,421
At 31 March 2012 RZE-Z%
=A=t—-H 4,888 769 15,011 2,786 4,306 10,049 37,809
The building was held outside Hong Kong under medium ZEFREBBIIUPEHENES -
term lease.
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7.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 7. BAHEERE
The Group
F-3 L]
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Ti#xT TET
The Group's prepaid lease payments AEEEMNEHEREERE:
comprise:
Land outside Hong Kong under EBEMAFHENETE 2 it
medium term lease 33,269 34,209
Analysed for reporting purposes as: fERIRAZRZ D :
Current assets (include in trade and RBEE (FFTAEZREMEIK
other receivables and deposits) (Note 13) RERZE) (MEE13) 1,233 1,223
Non-current assets ERBEE 32,036 32,986
33,269 34,209

At 31 March 2012, prepaid lease payments with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$4,390,000 have been pledged
to secure credit facilities granted to an independent third

party.

R-ZE——-—F=A=+—H BEEEY
4,390,000 8 t 2 BN HEREERE T
—BRUE=FZ2EEREEDLIKF
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8. WEDE
The Group
*TKE
2013 2012
—E—Z=%F —E-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Completed investment properties ERIREDNE 8,157 7,611
At fair value BOAFE
At 1 April HMA—A 7,611 6,045
Exchange realignment & A 54 231
Fair value change NEEEZD 492 1,335
At 31 March R=A=+-—8H 8,157 7,611
The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 KEBZREVENR_ZT—Z=FR_-F
March 2013 and 2012 have been arrived at on the basis of a ——EZA=T—HZAFENREHE
valuation carried out at that date by Messrs. Asset Appraisals AEBITREECEVSERTEMGE
Limited, independent qualified professional valuer not MEENTEREERARRZBETZ
connected to the Group. {4 & T & 7€ °
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence HEDZZEENEZRZERTER
of transaction prices for similar properties. HMEE °
All of the Group's property interests held under operating AEBRELLHEERFE URRES W
leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value ARZFEEEYER A FLEEXF
model and are classified and accounted for as investment EUREREARENEAR-
properties.

ErHEEEHREE
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8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - continued 8. BEME-#&
The carrying amount of investment properties shown above PR EYHEREERSE:
comprises:
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E-CZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET
Land outside Hong Kong: BEBEMZ LM
Medium-term lease AR A 8,157 7,611

R-ZFE-—-—F=A=+-—H0 EREAEY
amount of approximately HK$7,611,000 had been pledged 7,611,0008 T2 RENEECHTR T —F
to secure credit facilities granted to an independent third BUE=F2EEmERFLER-
party.

At 31 March 2012, investment properties with a carrying

BE-_Z—=F=ZA=+—HLFE &
R AT BREN 2 M) 20 £ I A # 5436,00058
7T (ZF— 4% :382,0008 ) - FiEAH
ZHERRARBME(ZE—_F =F)
MERFAEAR REBEHR AEH
HEFITNZRAREEERESHT

For the year ended 31 March 2013, property rental income
earned during the year was approximately HK$436,000
(2012: HK$382,000). The property held had committed
tenants for the next two (2012: three) years. At the end of
the reporting period, the Group contracted with tenants for

the following future minimum lease receivables:

HUA XIA HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012/2013

2013 2012

“®-—=% | —F—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FERT

Within one year —FR 457 466
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EERLF (BEERWE) 300 777
757 1,243

126



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

9. GOODWILL 9. WE
The Group
x5EH
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5% 3
At 1 April 2011 R=ZZ——FMA—H 1,062,881
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) U B — T B B A &) (B 5E35) 338
Exchange realignment & WA 12
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R-E——-—F=A=+—HK
—E2-—_FmMA—H 1,063,231
Exchange realignment & A 2
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=%=F=+—H 1,063,233
Impairment i =
At 1 April 2011, 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 and R-ZZE——FMA—H-
31 March 2013 —E-——F=A=+—8"
—E-——_FWA—HBHK
—E-—=HF=ZA=+—H 274,813
Carrying value REE
At 31 March 2013 B-E—=%=H=+—H 788,420
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——#=A=+—H 788,418

ErHEEEHREE
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9. GOODWILL - continued 9.

Notes:

(@) At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the
recoverable amount of goodwill, and determined that no
impairment loss on goodwill is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (2012: Nil).

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

10. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 10.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the following cash generating units (CGUs). The
carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated impairment
losses) as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 are allocated as

meE-&
GER

@@ RBESHR AEBEFEFEzATRE
TR VTEETYEFERESBEAR
FErEHERRARI(ZT—=F:
) -

BEEERENR ZFBENRGRE KR
RHFFE10RIRE -

e 8 R (E A A
RHEAANS BEEIRETIRS
BEEENU - R-BE-—=FKR-ZT-—-F=
A=+—-—H BEZRE{E (NMKRIRH
BEE)PEBOT :

follows:
The Group
FEME
2013 2012
—E—Z=%f —E-——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Provision of general hospital services R Bl R 4R & 1 B8 B AR 5
in the PRC 2,899 2,899
Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution KRBz Z¥HL 3 Kk 5 UK
and pharmaceutical retail chain business EY) T E R EK
in the PRC 785,521 785,519
788,420 788,418
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

- continued

Provision of general hospital services in the PRC
The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined
based on a value in use calculation which uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and a discount
rate of 10.40% (2012: 12.07%) per annum. Cash flow
projections during the budgeted period are based on the
same expected gross margins throughout the budget period.
Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to
exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of this CGU.
Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations for the market

development.

Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution and

pharmaceutical retail chain business in the PRC

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5-year period and a discount rate of 9.01%
(2012: 12.78%) per annum. The cash flow projections
during the budgeted period are based on the same expected
gross margins throughout the budget period. The cash
flows beyond the budgeted period have been extrapolated
using a steady 1% (2012: 1%) per annum by reference to
market rate. This growth rate does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the market. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of this CGU. Management determined
the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and

its expectations for the market development.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

10. BERKEIR &

ROER#GEEERES
HREEEBU A RESENREF
REETEEE mMEABERESER
FitEZ RELFHMBEEMSEHZ
REREBRA URNEEEF1040%
(ZE—ZF 1207%):tE-FBEHR
ZEEREFER DEREEEEHAME
BzEAEMNEFE BEBERG TE
ARESBEKIEZERBRATELHR
ZEE%E FTEERHREELENY
REAABEEBHITRESHEAE BEE
REBAIXRBREHT SRR ZEME
EREERE-

RABZEMRERSBLURENS
EEHRERY

BREELENM AW SEIREER
BEFEEE MERBEREEEREMR
BREZRETFHRMBREMSH 2R
EREFR URFEREF.01% (=
BE-THF11278%) T E-REHAZR
%miﬁﬂ'ﬁgmﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁz
BRAENRFE - AEHRZREREN
Q%m%ﬂfuwﬂ_i—_i 1% )
ZREFHERZIEF UERXI BB
$%25%¥ﬁwﬁfomﬁﬁﬁf ﬁ

BB EEMEEZERBRRA

ReeBEes. Té%ﬁﬂﬁééiﬁu
ZEHAEERHETNESHAE B
EREBERBERASH SRR ZFER
BEEEEERNER

ErHEEEHREE

B+ €102/210C
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11. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11

3 PEES F

The Company

b 3/ |
2013 2012
—E—=5 —E-—CF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#xT TET
Unlisted shares, at costs FEEWmRM mERAE 376,267 376,265
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERRAREEE (267,575) (267,575)
108,692 108,690

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest free and recoverable/repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the investments in subsidiaries are
reduced to their recoverable amounts which are determined
by reference to the estimation of future cash flows expected

to be generated from the respective subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2013 are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated financial

statements.

W (BR)KEBLRTIEARER .
RERARBERRE MEE-

RIE 2 AIRE 2 REET MR EET
WEEFE mAWEEEL 2 REHEE
MBARELE ZGFTARRREREME
Fo

AARR=ZE—Z=F=A=+—HzZ=E
EMfBEARNEBIRRGS BB RERMEE
43 o

12. INVENTORIES 12. 8
The Group
FEE

2013 2012
—Z2—= —E-—-F
HK$"000 HK$'000
THET TET
Finished goods SR 124,038 110,553




Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 75 3R = M 5

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 1B.BEREMBERERERES
DEPOSITS
The Group The Company
FHRE /|
2013 2012 2013 2012
“®-=F | Z2-=F | Z8-ZF | Z2-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER FTHT TER
Trade receivables EE Y LE 358,812 249,101 - -
Bill receivables RURE 7,490 3,206 - -
Prepayments and deposit paid FAFREREFES 68,747 60,351 354 294
Prepaid lease payments BAEERE (HEE7)
(Note 7) 1,233 1,223 - - w
Other receivables H 1t e KRR 75,966 71,983 - 12 ff
5
512,248 385,864 354 306
Less: Impairment loss B R IR 2 %
recognised in respect of ERABEESE E
other receivables (6,441) (6,269) = - N
S
505,807 379,595 354 306 2
.FH
o
As at 31 March 2013, included in other receivables is a loan R-ZBE—=F=F=1+—H ' HERH
of approximately HK$46,892,000 (2012: HK$37,493,000) HEERANFREILIE=FKEBNEER
advanced to Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Limited, an independent BIRA T 2 — £ E;#46,892,000% T
third party. The loan receivable carries interest at 5% (2012: (=Z=F— =% :37,493,000/87T) ° :ZIEUR
5%) per annum and is recoverable on demand. The loan BERIEFERNERY) (ZE—ZF 5% )5t
receivable is secured by the entire issued share capital of BERAZRERKE - ZEWREFRUATKEN
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Limited. EERERATZEZIE BTRAEIR
#o
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

DEPOSITS - continued

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution and pharmaceutical retain
chain business are mainly on credit. Invoices are normally
payable from 30 to 90 days of issuance. Payment terms
with customers from general hospital services are normally
payable from 0 to 30 days. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables at the end of the reporting period:

1B.REAREMERRFARES

—
AEEEEYRBRDEUARENTE
BHEEXEBEFITYUZNRAIRNEESR
AR - B R —RANRB L BHR30E
RN - REBERES M ERRBE
PRIV 2RI —RAROEI0HAX
f§o LT BRIREH K2 & 5 BURIEK
e A

The Group
F%E

2013 2012
—®—= —E-C-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
0 to 90 days 0&90H 293,405 215,558
91 to 180 days 91£180H 59,004 24,729
181 to 365 days 181£365H 3,931 8,382
Over 365 days HBiB365H 4,164 1,807
360,504 250,476

Less: Impairment loss recognised W EZEWRIEZ
in respect of trade receivables SRR EEE (1,692) (1,375)
358,812 249,101

Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts which
are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful
receivables because there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the Group
to the counterparty. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
the directors of the Company assessed that the amounts are
not expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in Renminbi.

X REBECEZRRFBACEREEH
R AR 38 HA T 25 5 [ 30 4 3 b 7 52 M UK
RERGBRB2HE REARSEENE
ZEEERVEEARSHIRBN AR
B o 7 55 B 39 42 5 bt 5 AR BRI A A AR 4R
mENEMEEMRIEE - REEERER T
UASESERR 5 F 2 EAKEFE
4 o B BRI E 2 FE WK IR T ERE Y B R
BoRFAR MALRAESMAZER
BRIl E -

A 2 5 5 B8 2 R LA R
BB o
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 1B3. RHRAMBBERARZRE
DEPOSITS - continued — &
Ageing of trade receivables that are past due but CERMEEREEZRIBIRTAZ
not impaired IRES
The Group
*xEH
2013 2012
—2—=F —E—CF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET
Overdue by: EEHE
1 to 90 days 1£90H 59,004 24,729
91 to 180 days 91£180H 3,931 8,382
Over 180 days HBiB180H 2,472 432
i
Total @ 65,407 33543
S
M
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts BEEKSFECRIERGZET af
of trade receivables f\g
ol
The Group =
F%ME S
N
2013 2012 2
—E—=F —E-—F gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 =
FET TET
At 1 April REBE—H 1,375 3,882
Exchange realignment R 9 110
Disposal of a subsidiary HEMB QR - (1,142)
Reversal of provision for the year FRBERE (551) (1,554)
Impairment losses recognised ERRZBEEE 859 79
At 31 March R=A=+-—8H 1,692 1,375
The individually impaired trade receivables related to the 18 BB B =2 E 5 FE Y 7k 18 T3 B2 [ ¥ B X
debtors that were in financial difficulties and the directors of NEZEBEABR MAQTESEETEZ
the Company assessed that the amounts are not expected to ZRBFEHAAYME -

be recovered.
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13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Ageing of impaired trade receivables

1B.BERAMBEERERES

Bl {ER % ElREZER

The Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—=%f —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THET
Over 365 days #HiB365H 1,692 1,375

Movement in the provision for impairment loss recognised in

respect of other receivables is summarised as follows:

REMEURERI ZAESERES

BT

The Group
TEE

2013 2012
—E—=% —E-CF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
At 1 April ROEA—H 6,269 5,961
Exchange realignment & A 42 214
Reversal of provision for the year FREERR - (754)
Impairment losses recognised ERRAZBEEE 130 848
At 31 March R=B=+—H 6,441 6,269

14. AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 March 2012, amount due from a non-controlling
shareholder was unsecured, interest free and recoverable on

demand.

14. BUFRERBRRZREA

R-ZB-—F=ZA=+—8 EWRFZER
REZAREAHERT RERTRERK

@o
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16.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. TEem IR
The Group and the Company XEERELT
Redemption
option
contract
ROHiESH
HK$'000
FET
At 1 April 2011 R=ZZE——FMA—H 432
Fair value changes AFEEZE (271)
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RZEBE—-—F=A=+—HK
—E-—_FWMBE—H 161
Fair value changes NEEED (92)
At 31 March 2013 W-E—=%=A=+—H 69
Notes: Pt EE :

Derivative financial instruments represented the conversion option
element of the convertible note issued by the Group and are
measured fair value using the binomial tree pricing model (“Binomial
Tree Model”) at the end of each reporting period.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at 31 March 2013, the cash and bank balances of
the Group included currencies denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to approximately HK$67,648,000 (2012:
HK$77,372,000) which is not freely convertible into other

currencies.

PESH T EEAREERTZUTRRRENGR
RERD > RN EHEHRER ZEXBRE
BEREX ((ZRAMREXDAELIFE-

16. & R BITHER

RZEBE-—=F=A=+—H8 FEEZHE
SRBITEBBEUARE (TARK])
STEABEH67,648,0008 T (ZF—=
% :77,372,0008 t) 2 5B EAR A B
HEBAHMES-

ErHEEEHREE

B+ €102/210C
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17. SHARE CAPITAL 17. B &
Number of share Amount
Bin & B &8
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: ERE -
Ordinary shares ZBER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each BREMESETZEBR
—at 1 April 2011 -R=ZE——FWMB—H 2,200,000,000 1,100,000
— share subdivision (Note ¢) —RDFA (MaEc) 107,800,000,000 -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each S| EEO.01/# Tz il B
— at 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 -BW-_E—_f£=A=+—8H"
and 31 March 2013 —E-—"_FMA—HR
—E—=%=H=1+—H 110,000,000,000 1,100,000
Non-voting convertible preference BRERTERESLK
shares
Non-voting convertible preference BREBEISETZERERE
shares of HK$0.5 each ARRELER
—at 1 April 2011 -RZZE——FmBE—H 800,000,000 400,000
— share subdivision (Note c) —BRm A (FisEc) 39,200,000,000 -
Non-voting convertible preference S E{E0.01#ETZEREE
shares of HK$0.01 each A % B% {2 SE AR
— at 31 March 2012, 1 April 2012 -BR-_ZE—_f§£=A=+—H"
and 31 March 2013 —E—"_FMA—HR
—E—=%=H=1+—H 40,000,000,000 400,000
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17. SHARE CAPITAL - continued 17. BEX 48
Number of share Amount
iz & B &8
HK$'000
FET
Issued and fully paid: ERTREME:
Ordinary shares ZER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each BREMESETZEBR
—at 1 April 2011 -RZE——FmE—H 672,438,264 336,219
— capital reduction (Note b) —HIR AR A (FfEED ) = (329,495)
— converted from convertible —ABRELERBRR
preference shares 238,500,000 2,385
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREEBTZEER @
- at 31 March 2012 and -R-E--%=A=+-H il
1 April 2012 k—Z2——-FMA—H 910,938,264 9,109 Bﬁ
— converted from convertible — AR ELERBRR i
preference shares 173,000,000 1,730
=
=
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SIREE.0O1E T HEHR yf
- at 31 March 2013 -R-ZE—=%=H=+—H 1,083,938,264 10,839 N
o
N
N
Non-voting convertible preference BRERTERESLR 2
shares H
A
Non-voting convertible preference EREHEISETZERER
shares of HK$0.5 each ARRE LR
—at 1 April 2011 -R=ZE——FMAB—H 510,000,000 255,000
— capital reduction (Note b) —HIR AR A (MfaEb ) - (249,900)
— conversion to ordinary shares —EHBRAEER (238,500,000) (2,385)
Non-voting convertible preference EREMENBTZERERE
shares of HK$0.01 each ARRELER
- at 31 March 2012 and -R-ZE——-F=A=+—H
1 April 2012 RK-—ZFE——FmMA—H 271,500,000 2,715
— conversion to ordinary shares —EHBRAEER (173,000,000) (1,730)
Non-voting convertible preference SR E{E0.01E T Tk RiE
shares of HK$0.01 each ] % B% 2 SE bR
- at 31 March 2013 -R-E—=%=A=+—H 98,500,000 985
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17. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

Notes:

(a)

The preference shares are non-voting shares. The holders
of the preference shares are entitled to receive the same
dividends as the holders of ordinary shares. In addition, the
holders of the preference shares have the right to convert
any preference share into the Company’s ordinary shares at
any time at the conversion price at the rate of 1 to 1 each.
The conversion price will be subject to adjustments only upon
occurrence of certain dilutive events.

On 10 August 2011, the Company passed an ordinary
resolution for capital reduction, the issued share capital
of the Company was by (i) HK$0.49 per existing ordinary
share by cancelling an equivalent amount of paid-up capital
to HK$0.01 each and (ii) HK$0.49 per existing convertible
preferred share by cancelling an equivalent amount of
paid-up capital to HK$0.01 each. The issued share capital
of the Company was reduced from approximately from
HK$591,219,000 to HK$11,824,000. The capital reduction,
resulted in reducing the issued share capital of the Company
by approximately HK$579,395,000. Such amount was credited
to the capital reserve of the Company.

On 10 August 2011, the Company passed an ordinary
resolution for share subdivision, each unissued share capital
in the existing authorised but unissued share capital of the
Company into 50 shares of a nominal value of HK$0.01 each.

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the

then existing shares in all respects.

17. & —4&

B & -

(a)

BERSBERZERO -BERFAA
REZEZBEREEAEBZRE
Leoh - BRRSAABREBRZIZE
RPBRRESEMNELRERLADF
TER-BRREENSEE THESR
5T AR

R-Z——FNA+ B XAGAFRER
BABB-—EZBERER KXQAFZE
BITRANEREEZBERRA0.49
BT ARNATHARZRAZHESHE
Z28R0.0BT RINVEREETER
BERRAL049BT ARATHAR
BRAZHESEEZER001B T - ALD
A2 B BTRAML591,219,000/ 5T
il 8 2 11,824,0005% 7T o Bl 5 B 48 B 2
RAFE BTRARD#579,395,000
BT ZeBEARIERQAT ZERFH
o

RZZ2E-——FNA+H  AQARKRH
FABER-—REBRER A2 ZH
BEEERBTREATERARBIRAS
FARSOREIREEO.01E T Z IR °

FRABRTZAEROES T EYEZR
ZEERODERRS M-
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18. RESERVES 18. & i
The Company b, /=]
Share-based
Share Capital payment Contributed  Convertible Accumulated
premium reserve reserve surplus note reserve losses Total
LginE
Bt RERE
K @R BERE RES] | BARR 0 Rt ER #at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TAR TAR TR TRR

At 1 April 2011 R-E-——-£mA-A 190,250 = 11,801 1,452 2,537 (17,687) 188,353
Issue of share options RITHRRE - - 3,190 - - - 3,190
Share options cancelled HERE - - (129) - = 129 L
Share reorganisation RHE4 = 579,395 = = = o 579,395
Loss for the year AEEFR - - - - - (4,615) (4,615)

P i

At 31 March 2012 and R=Z-=f o

1 April 2012 =R=+-HR BE

“E-—#MA-A 190,250 579,395 14,862 1,452 2,537 (22173) 766,323 ?ﬁ

Issue of share options BRITERE - - 1,284 - - = 1,284

Loss for the year AEEFE - - - - - (7,649) (7,649) :Elf

<

>

At 31 March 2013 RZB-Z§ 2l

ZBZ+-H 190,250 579,395 16,146 1,452 2,537 (29,822) 759,958 S

~

N

=

w

(@) The contributed surplus of the Company represents (@) ADBZHANBEBIBEARDAARER W

the difference between the aggregate net assets of the —EEFoSEEHAME 2K =
subsidiaries acquired by the Company under the group BRARZBEEFEREARAARBRUY
reorganisation in 2001 and the nominal amount of the BRITZROZEEMERIZZE

Company's shares issued for the acquisition. ZHo
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18. RESERVES - continued

The Company - continued

(b)

The Company had distributable reserves of
approximately HK$739,823,000 as at 31 March 2013
(2012:HK$747,472,000). Under the Companies Law
(Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is available
for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend the Company
is able to pay its debt as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends shall be distributed
out of the retained profits or other reserves, including

the share premium and capital reserve of the Company.

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

18. fEfE — 48
ENE -

(b)

R-ZZE—=%=A=+—-8 %A
=B A 2k 7% 5 49739,823,000
BT (ZZ— =5 :747,472,000/%
) BREMEHEHS DAL (K1
R ERE EAQRZABERK
M AR AR T » a0 B2 P8 5 K =K
BAEXARBHHIEEANRBEE
BBERPIBZEE AIEXQATZ
RHRERT USRS AR E SR
KA FRR-BERADNRAZEHBE
SR IR EE B A D E R B A F
FEMEE (BEROEZERESR
) BT

19. BB R EMEMNKRIT

The Group The Company
F5E FLF

2013 2012 2013 2012
—P-ZF | ZF--F | ZB—=%F | _F-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT TExT FHET TET
Trade payables B 5 EMARE 292,647 221,719 = =
Bill payables P & 4,350 45,693 = =
Trade deposit received EKESR: 3,030 3,823 - =
Accruals and other payables BT B AR E (I FIE 31,642 31,215 1,452 1,543
331,669 302,450 1,452 1,543
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19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. R R H ¥ RRIA — &
- continued
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the UTARBREBRR2E S BN RIERER
end of the reporting period: pal i
The Group
F%E
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FiET
0 to 90 days 0&90H 164,093 153,372
91 to 180 days 91£180H 59,166 40,623
181 to 365 days 181&£365H 54,548 18,602 "
Over 365 days ®iB365A 14,840 9,122 mj
it
M
292,647 221,719
af
i
>
aj
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is BEETERZFHEEHRIH- N
o
90 days. N
N
=
w
Bill payables were secured by certain pledged bank deposits. BHEEUE TEIRFRTERERIK il
Jt
#o -
20. BANK BORROWINGS 20. SRITHEEH
The Group
E 3|
2013 2012
—B-=F | =F—=F%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Bank borrowings — secured (Note a and b) $R{T{EE - BEM (MizEakb) 50,672 36,582
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20. BANK BORROWINGS - continued

20. BITHEE—&

The Group
F5E
2013 2012
—E—Z=%f —E-C=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHT FiERT
Carrying amount repayable: EEERTSHE:
On demand or within one year shown RERS—FR FTARBEE
under current liabilities 50,672 36,582

Notes:

At 31
approximately HK$12,359,000 were secured by personal

March 2013, the secured bank borrowings of

guarantee by Mr. Weng Jiaxing, an ex-director of the
Company and an independent third party and secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$37,077,000 were secured by
personal guarantee by independent third parties, carries fixed

interest rate at 7.57% to 7.80% per annum.

As at 31 March 2013, the secured bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,236,000 were secured by corporate
guarantee by inter-group company, carries variable interest
rate at 130% lending rate of The People’s Bank of China per

annum.

At 31 March 2012, the secured bank borrowings were
secured by land and buildings owned by an independent third
party and the personal guarantee by Mr. Yung. Secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$24,552,000 carries fixed
interest rate at 8.53% per annum. Secured bank borrowings
of approximately HK$12,030,000 carries variable interest
rate at 130% lending rate of The People’s Bank of China per
annum.

The secured bank borrowings were denominated in Renminbi.

N-ZZE—=F=A=+—H BEHFR
T E%12,359,0008 T I UK AT 2
— BRI ESEMELEER —BBILFE=
FREZBAERERER MEER
$RATIEE 437,077,000 T T LAB L5
SHRREZEAERERKR REE
FFE7SIERTSEFE °

R-ZZB-—=5=ZA=1+—-H BEFR
T1EE#1,236,000/8 T I3 A EE 2 7
FREzEXERERER ZHEA
RIBITZAZEEFHNRI30EE

RZZE——F=A=+—H0 > GHEHFR
TEEDUBYSE= a2t BKE
FURSEEREZBAARRERRK
# o 3K 17 4R 17 8 & #924,552,00078 7T
REEFEF RS S3E B - HIMPRT
fEE#12,030,000/8 TIRPEARRIT
2B EEFEFERI130EFTE

BEMARTEEIUAREE



21.

22.

Notes to the Financial Statements

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders are unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

On 9 May 2007, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Hero Vision at a consideration of HK$157,300,000,
the consideration of HK$33,000,000 were satisfied by the
The
Convertible Note mature at the second anniversary of the
issue date. On 8 May 2009, the maturity date of Convertible
Note was extend from 8 May 2009 to 9 May 2017. The

conversion price share was HK$1.90.

issue of convertible note (the “Convertible Note”).

The Convertible Note contain three components, redemption
option, liability and equity elements. The equity element is
presented in equity heading “Convertible note reserve”. The

effective interest rate of the liability component is 10.97%.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using
a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion component, was included in shareholders’

equity in convertible note reserve.

21.

22.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

FEf IR R ZRIF

FAERRRRZ HARRIER 28R
ABRBREE

CIE: Y& 3

A—ETLFHEANA AEBUKRE
157,300,000 T WIBE S 2 HERTR
78> R {E 33,000,000 T 2 E B 34T H]
BEREE (TAIRRER]) SR
EBERBTEHERMBFRH R
ZTAFRANB TRREEZZHA
EH-ZZAFEBENAEZEEZ_Z—+
FRANB -BRBKRER1 0BT

MR EEAEBEDREE SERER
Mo oEHMBoRERK [ TRRREE
RBIET2Y BERI Z2EBFNERE
10.97E °

BEHNS 2D FE AL EETREE
%2 HBHENE - HBLEHARWE
W5 2EE A TRRIERE 2R
iR

ErHEEEHREE

B+ €102/210C
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22. CONVERTIBLE NOTE - continued

The Convertible Note recognised in the consolidated

22. MR RE &

RESHBRRRER 2 TRBRRE 2

statement of financial position was calculated as follows: STEWMT
The Group
and the
Company
XEER
r. 3/ |
HK$'000
TET
Fair value of Convertible Note issued RIEZELFRANBRTZARREE 2
on 9 May 2007 ANEE 54,750
Less: Derivative financial instruments BWTTEEm T A 514
Equity component D (25,125)
Liability component on initial recognition and ~ #F LS ERE 2
amortised cost at 9 May 2007 EERBIRR=_ZZELFRANAE
2 8 B AR 30,139
Amortised cost at 1 April 2011 RIE——F A —HZ#ERAN 3,969
Interest expense FERX 443
Interest payable EARE (130)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2012 and R-ZE——F=A=+—HK
1 April 2012 —ZT-_FMB—HAZEHEKAE 4,282
Interest expense F BB X 475
Interest payable FE A F B (130)
Amortised cost at 31 March 2013 R-E—Z=%=ZRA=+—HBzZz##EF 4,627

As at 31 March 2013, the outstanding principal amount of
Convertible Note was HK$6,500,000 (2012: HK$6,500,000).

Interest expense on the convertible note is calculated using

the effective interest method by applying the effective

interest rate of 10.97% to the liability component.

R-ZEBE—Z=F=HA=1+—H 2R EZE
2 18 KRB R £ 88 56,500,0008 7T (=
E—— 4 :6,500,0008 ) °

HRREEZANEREZERABRREE
RIBEEEH D 2EBRFZEI1097EE -



23. PROMISSORY NOTE

On 8 March 2010, the Company issued promissory
note (the “Promissory Note”) in a principal amount of
HK$290,000,000 and with mature on 7 March 2020.
Promissory Note were issued for acquiring the entire issued
share capital of Nurture Fit Limited and bear interest at 1%

per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The effective

interest rate is 3%.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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23. ARRE
R-ZZE-ZF=AN\RB AQFHTAS
£6290,000,000B T HR T _FF=
AtBEHMARERE ([RLEE]) -
AEAZEDABBREERATZHE
BITRAMET  REMKRI1EFE ¥
FRE—R-BEREAERIE-

The Group

and the

Company

FEER

r. 3/

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2011 AZE——FMA—H 194,183

Interest expense FERE X 5,852

Interest payable FE A5 FI £, (2,300)
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 R-E——-F=ZA=+—HK

—E2-—FMA—H 197,735

Interest expense FE B & 5,723

Interest payable ERFE (2,212)

Redemption during the year FRER (8,611)

At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=A=+—8H 192,635

During the year ended 31 March 2013, part of the
Promissory Note with principal amount of HK$10,000,000
was early redeemed by the Company. A loss of

approximately HK$1,389,000 was recognised.

RBE-Z-—=F=ZA=+—HLFE"
AATERAMBEEBHELEE K&
%87/10,000,0008 T ERRAREB BN A
1,389,0003% 7t °

ErHEEEHREE
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised

and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

24, iEEFRIF
UTEBREERBASERIA-IEE
ERBEAGRER 228

Deferred tax liabilities: BIERARR -
Convertible
Note
CIE: 128
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2011 R-ZE——FMA—H 598
Credit to consolidated statement of FRFTAGLEETHEBEREER
comprehensive income for the year (51)
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RZBE——-—F=A=+—-80K
—E-"FMA—H 547
Credit to consolidated statement of FRTTAGELZHEREER
comprehensive income for the year (57)

At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=A=+—8H 490

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

UTTAMB2E®E WMET ZIELER
THAER D AT

2013 2012

—E—= —E2-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#ET T8&T

Deferred tax assets EEFEEE - -
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHIBEE (490) (547)
(490) (547)




24,

25.

Notes to the Financial Statements

DEFERRED TAXATION - continued

Deferred tax liabilities: - continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the
Company has unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$39,514,000 (2012: HK$41,531,000) and nil (2012: Nil)
respectively available to set off against future assessable
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the unutilised tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams. These tax losses in Hong Kong may be
carried forward indefinitely and the tax losses in PRC may be

expired within five years.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(a) Pre-listing share options
Pursuant to the pre-listing share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
directors, employees, consultants, and advisors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. All of these options have duration of 10
years from and including 10 May 2002 subject to the

terms of the scheme.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

24, BRTERIE — 18

25.

BIERFAR: — A

RBEBR ZREEREQTZKRE AR
EE B BI#39,514,0008 T (ZE—=
F:41,531,0008 0 ) RE(ZZ—=
F )T AEESERRERBEF - B
A AR 3R % T R B R AR B % /A R B
ABHERRRE LR BEE 2EEE
REEBETERREABERPERBEER
AHREREFRE-

R Bz fE 5T E

(a) LnimRAE
REFAAAR-BE-FMA=+
AR 2 b5 A8 R AT 81 AR A
)T L5 IR R AR R W
BAZREORAAREMELT
ZAMEE - BE BEERBAAR
T RS D F IR 2 W AR BL
SE AT o RIES B AT
REBRER-SE-FHA+H
(BIEZE)BH10FRBH -

ErHEEEHREE
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(a) Pre-listing share options — continued

25. SRR Rt B — 48
(a) LW RIMEARHE — &

Details of the movements in the number of share

options during the year under the Company’s pre-

listing share options scheme which are exercisable in

three equal trenches from 10 November 2002, 10 May
2003 and 10 May 2004, respectively, to 9 May 2012 at

an exercise price of HK$2.35 per share are as follows:

Number of share options

ANE ETHHERESEET 2B
M%%EM¢$F2%E%FW

BEBRETSINA-SEC
¢+—H+El —EE=FEFA+
BR-ZZTNFEATHEC-Z
——FHANBHE 5 =HTE
SHTTEHERS TEELS
f%2.35/8 7T :

BEERA
Outstanding Outstanding
at Lapsed during at Date of
Type of participants 1 April 2012 the year 31 March 2013 grant
RZE-Z% RZ8-Z
mA—H =A=+—-H
SHEEY R E FREN I RTE RHAX
Former advisor of the Group 142,666 (142,666) - 25 April 2002
A& BRI —EBC-F
MA=t+%HE
Former employees of the Group 95,111 (95,111) - 25 April 2002
AEERES —EE-E
MA=-t+EH
Total 237,777 (237,777) -
Bt
Weighted average exercise price HK$2.35/8 7T - Nil £

MEFIITHEE

The pre-listing share options outstanding at 31 March

2012 had weighted average remaining contractual life

of 0.07 years.

R-ZBE—C-F=HB=1+—HZKT
fE LAl REZINETIREGE
#HHAPR B0.07%5
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25. SRR MRt & — 4R
(b) LikMmasE

25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued
(b) Post-listing share options

Pursuant to the post-listing share option scheme
also adopted by the Company on 20 April 2002, the
Company may grant options at HK$1 per offer to any
directors, employees, any supplier of goods or services,
any customers, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technical support or
any shareholder of the Group or any investee or any
holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any investee, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to them, to subscribe for shares in
the Company. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the post-listing
share option scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.
No participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in
full, would result in the total number of shares already
issued under all the options granted to him or her that
are for the time being subsisting and unexercised in
any 12-month period would exceed 1% of the total
number of shares in issue. The exercise price of the
share will be determined at the higher of the average
of closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
and the nominal value of the shares. The share options
are exercisable for a period not later than 10 years

from the date of grant.

REARRATR-ZFZT_FNOA
“tTHERAZ EHRBRETE
AATAUBERHBEREZZY
1B Tz2RERAEEEMNES -
’BE  ENEmRIRBEERS M
EFURREHAR FBEIHEMEK
MEXE2EMALRER AEE
EREAZREEE ZEFIRRS
FEEEAKREQRARZREER
s iTEMES Z2EAFTAEARE
ARBARARMD < BRAE LR
BEBAL -RELETRBREST
SR TFRHEZERESIR 2RHA
HTEBBAQATKEBTRA
10% i RABBITHEE  BEHR
FAt+t-—EAMBRERTF—E2
HBEZEHBRERSHFEREERT
E2BEBREMERITZROER
BBERTROLE %  BIFEME
ZSHRERHBRE-BREZT
EESUARDNEZRHBERER
BRI RER S B EBR T2 PR
™8 IR P R R I B
Rz mERROEAE=EH2
ReEETE -BREITRTERA
R BB 0F 2 BB RITE-
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options — continued

New share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 10 August
2011, the Company may grant options not less than
the highest of (1) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a
business day; (2) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant; and (3) the nominal
value of the share on the date of grant to any
employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
including any executive and non-executive directors
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any
suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers or any
person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group. The total
numbers of shares may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the New Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the relevant class of shares in issue from
time to time. No options may be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in this limit
being exceeded. Any grant of options to a connect
person (including but no limited to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder) or its associates
must be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent non-executive
director who is the grantee of the options). No
participant shall be granted an option, if exercise in
full, would result in the total number of share issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to him or her that for the time being subsisting and
unexercised in any 12-month period would exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue. The share
options are exercisable for a period not later than 10
years from the date of grant but subject to the early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme.

25. ARGt B — 4R
(b) EmiEmAxiE—i&

RRAARZZB-——FN\B+BEMN
FEREE ([HBRETE]) -
RATAEARDAHEAEMAHE L
AZEMES BREAQAREE
A E AR 2 EMAITRIFEANTE
B REMAMH4ESD BEBH KER
BHAARESE2RPBERAR/EE
SEBERTREELHBERMZEMA
T RHBRE ETEEFSER
TIBEBRSE: (NEXAE AR
BRFHBRBRONRREAB (AAE
EHIZWHE: QBXAE AR
BERABRONBERE YR
BERB 2 FHHIRHE RE)KRH
RELBRZEE BTERERN
BRETIARADIAMEMEMBR
BB mE RITENIBEBR
EMAURTHROLE  FEEB
THRMEBERE RTRDIIZ0% °
EHEHETEAERM EREKEE
AR REHBRETERNALT
AR RET SR HBRE
BAEEAL (BEERRRES £
BETHAESREZRR) AEBEA
TREEABERE SRAEEEY
FHBTES (FTEESHBEREX
RANEABLERNTES) HE
FASEEH IS ERBRE
BROTER SEHREMA T+ =@
AUEBETEEERNBRE (F
HEERARTEE)MERITR
BTFRITHROABEEBESETR
DREN % - BRETRTERE
RHBEHESTtF2HBRTUT
o HEAZRFRILHBRETS
FRIRIR
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued

Details of the movements in the number of share

options during the year are as follows:

Number of share options

25. SRR MRt & — 4R

(b) i A A% 42 — 4R
FRBREHBEZEHFROT

HkENA
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment Cancelled  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at31March Date of price
Type of participants 2012 the year the year the year the year 2013 grant per share Exercise period
RIB-Z RI8-Z%
mA-H ZR=+-8 1
SHEFR RFTE FREH ERfTE ENEE FRES CESH] RHAM fiEm T
Directors
B2
Mr. Yung Kwok Leong 1,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
SEREE “EENE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAZ
=B=tH “Z-AEZA=thA
Mr. Zheng Gang 800,000 - - - - 800,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
PELE “EENE 058 ZBEAFNBZTHE
=R=tH “E-hEZAZthE
2,814,084 - - - - 2,814,084 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“2-%f 11288 —3-BF=A-1=A%
ZAtNR “Z-REZB=1ZH
6,700,000 - - - - 6,700,000 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
“B--F 0.6  —B-Z§-f-R%
TZA=t-H ZZ-ZE+ZR=+-H
Mr. Chen Jin Shan 1,700,000 - - - - 1,700,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
Relxs ZEENE 05%% ZEEAFAAZTAZ
=B=tH “E-AEZA=thA
2,084,507 - - - - 2,084,507 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“B-%F 1128n —E-B£=f-+=RZ
ZBtNB “E-REZf-1CR
6,700,000 - - - - 6,700,000 30 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
“2--f 0.16%7 “%--f-f-HZ
tZB=+H ZB-ZE+ZB=+-H

ErHEEEHREE
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued

25. SRR Rt B — 4R
(b) LR &

Number of share options
EENE

Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment Cancelled  Outstanding Exercise

at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price
Type of participants 2012 the year the year the year the year 2013 grant per share Exercise period

RZB-Z§ RZZ-Z§

mA—-H ZA=t-H 14
SHERN RFTHE ERRH ERTHE ERRE EMiER R&TE HHAMY fifER fiEs
Dr. Jiang Tao 800,000 - - - - 800,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2019
EREL “EENE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAEZ
=B=tH ZE-AEZAZTAA
1,563,380 - - - - 1,563,380 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
Z2-%F 1128n —B-BFZA-+ZRZ
ZBtNR “E-REZf-1CR
2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000 30 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
2% 0.16%7 “Z--“f-§-HE
tZB=+H ZB-ZE+ZB=+-H
Dr. Huang Jiaging 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 18 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009 to
29 March 2014
EMESE “ERENE 05%% ZBEAEAAZTAZ
=Bt+IH ZE-MEZAZTHA
312,676 - - - - 312,676 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
—2-%f 11288 —3-3F=A-1=A%
=RtNR “E-EF=f=1zH
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
“8--F 0.16Bx  —B-Z§-f-R%
TZR=+-H ZE2-ZH+ZA=1-H
Dr. Wong Yu Man, James 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
IHRREBE = 0.16%nT  ZF-Z§-f-HE
t=ZA=t-H ZE-ZFtA=t-H

30,174,647 - - - - 30,174,647



25.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued

Number of share options

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

25. SRR MRt &I — 48
(b) LR &

BEENE
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Adjustment Cancelled  Outstanding Exercise
at 1 April during during during during  at 31 March Date of price
Type of participants 2012 the year the year the year the year 2013 grant per share Exercise period
RZE-Z§ RZZ-Z§
mA—-H ZA=t-H 14
SHEEN RFTHE ERRH ERTHE FREE FRES RFTE RHAM fiEm s
Employees 459,739 - - - - 459,739 13 July 2006 HK$3.61 13 July 2006 to
12 July 2016
&8 ZEERE 3618 —BEAELATZAE
tBt+=H “E-AEEATZR
1,042,253 - - - - 1,042,253 21 Mar 2007 HK$2.94 21 March 2007 to
20 March 2017
ZBRLE 294Bn —2Bt5=h-1-HZ
ZA=t-H “E-tFZAZtH
8,200,000 - - - - 8,200,000 30 March 2009 HK$0.5 30 September 2009
to 29 March 2014
ZERNE 05T ZEEAFAAZTAEZ
=B=tH “E-ME=R=thE
21,574,648 - - - - 21,574,648 18 March 2010 HK$1.12 23 March 2010 to
22 March 2015
“B-%F 1128n —E-BE=f-1=RZ
ZBtNR ZE-RFZf-1CR
49,500,000 - - - - 49,500,000 31 December 2011 HK$0.16 1 January 2012 to
31 December 2013
2 0.16%7 “Z--“f-§-HE
t=ZA=t-H ZE-ZFth=t-H
110,951,287 = = = = 110,951,287
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.489 - - - - HK$0.489
NEFHTEE 0.489% T 0.489% 7

The post-listing share options outstanding at 31 March

2013 had weighted average remaining contractual life

of 1.38 (2012: 2.38) years.

R-ZE—=F=A=+—HEKIT
i 2 £ % B IR A2 2 AN RE 19 F R
EHHRB138F (=B —=F:
2.38%) e
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued

Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

The Group recognises the fair value of share options
granted as an expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when they were granted with
a corresponding increase being recognised in share-
based payment reserve. The employee share-based
payment reserve is transferred to share capital and
share premium, together with the exercise price, when
the option holder exercises its rights. As a transitional
provision, the cost of share option granted after 7
November 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January
2005 were expensed retrospectively in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of the respective
periods. During the year ended 31 March 2013,
approximately HK$1,284,000 (2012: HK$3,190,000)
share-based payment expenses were recognised.

Share options granted under the pre-listing share
options scheme are not expensed as the options were
all granted and vested before 7 November 2002 and
not subject to requirements of HKFRS 2.

The estimated fair value of each option granted on 13
July 2006, 24 July 2006, 21 March 2007, 30 March
2009, 18 March 2010 and 30 December 2011 are
approximately HK$0.226, HK$0.0188, HK$0.0384,
range from HK$0.012 to HK$0.021, range from
HK$0.036 to HK$0.062 and HK$0.0058 respectively.

25. ARGt B — 4R
(b) EmiEmEaiE—i&

B & -

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AEERBRESEHBESRES
HEREARIACELEREZ
AFEHIEH  WRURDHER
ZARFEEAEIEELG M- EE
URBHBERZAR ﬁ%ﬁ#%
REFE AT ERERIRE

Eﬁﬁ%éhﬁ&&ﬁlﬁ W%
BEMKRY R=ZFZE=-F+—A4
tHERE BER-_ZEZTHF—
B—HERFEBZBRERAT]
RERBEBZAEEZEERER
Bk REBE-ZE—=F=8
=+ —HLEFE#%1,284,000/%
7t (=& —=%:3,190,000/ 7T)
LR AERSRZEAZE F#

S

HRARYE £ AT i RAESH IR H
ZEREAR-ZEZT_F1+-A8
THAREREYER L RRE
7B B 75 R 5 2E B BB 25 PR - R0
EBXHZEBRE-

R=ZZBEXELA+=R -=ZF
NELAZTImA - ZBEELF=
A=t+—H —ZZAF=A=+
B-ZE-FF=A+NBAK=
E——F+-A=+HAREZE
HEREZESAFEIBNA
0.2267% 7T+ 0.01883 T - 0.0384
BTN F0.01258 T £0.02158
7t~ A F0.0363%8 T £0.06278 T
$0.00585% JT °
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options — continued
Notes: — continued

(iii)

— continued
The fair values were calculated using the Binomial

option pricing model. The inputs into the model were as

25.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

RRAR MRt B — 48
(b) LA —&

B & -

(iii)

—i&
— &
AFEDU-—BXBEEEER
SE - HZEABMAZERNNT :

follows:
Share option grant date
BRERHAY

13 July 24 July 21 March 30 March 18 March 30 December
2006 2006 2007 2009 2010 2011
ZEERE ZEERE 1 2 ZEENE —F-2F —F—-F
Date of grant i B tA+=H +tA-+WBE =A=+-H =R=+H =ZAtN\B +ZA=tH
Stock asset price RHEEE HKS0.83 7T HKS0.82BTL  HKSOSIET  HKSO.03BIT  HKS0.098ET  HKS0.128% 7T
Exercise price I8 HK$0.6278 7  HK$0.62E7  HKSO.5TET  HKS0.0587  HK$0.117H87  HK$0.160% 7T
Expected volatility BHRE 57.06% 44.89% 119.62% 100.13% 95.53% 53.02%
Risk-free rate ERBEE 3.984% 3.830% 3.682% 1.62% 1.68% 0.25%
Expected dividend yield BHREER 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
expected share price returns is based on statistical
analysis of daily prices over the one year immediately
preceding the grant date. The above calculation is
based on the assumption that there is no material
difference between the expected volatility over the
whole life of the options and the historical volatility of
the shares set out as above.

Because the binomial option pricing model requires
the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price, changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate.

REANRENHR 2RERETE
ZREDREZZRHEAH—F
ZEBRERBEIN - EHMEHETD
RENBREARH R 2RHBRK
iR & £ ol B 82 IR 4D [ SRR R 2
EBWHFERBEBR

MAEXHREEEXBES
EIBER SERGERZE
i REBRBRZEDTLEAY
8 D FPEMMET
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued
Notes: — continued

(iv)

As at 31 March 2013, 110,951,287 (2012: 104,699,205)
share options are exercisable.

In accordance with the term’s of share-based
arrangement, the share options granted on 30 March
2009 are exercisable in the following manner:

(@ up to 40% of the share options granted to
each grantee shall be exercisable on or after 30
September 2009 to 30 March 2010;

(b)  up to further 30% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
31 March 2010 to 30 March 2011; and

(¢) all the remaining 30% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 31 March 2011 to 30 March 2013, and in
each case, not later than 29 March 2019.

25. ARGt B — 4R
(b) EmiEmEaiE—i&

B & -

(iv)

4=

=1

R=ZT—=F=A=+—H AF
TEZERESE A110,951,287
B (=ZF—=%:104,699,205
%) o

REBEUARGBERZHE K
R-ZZEZAE=ZA=+HAEHEN
B IRUAT ARITE:

(@) BRZAOWEEFEEAREA
ZERETE-ZTTAEH
B=tAgz®8ZE-_ZE—F
F=ZA=1+HTE;

(b) HBHIRZ30%ER T HHK
RAZBREATE-Z—F
FZA=t—HIZEEZ
E——F=ZA=1tHTE:
)53

(© ZHBHRTI0%ERFEE
BAZEBRETE T ——
F=ZA=+—H=HZEE=
E—=HF=A=+H{T#"
HEREBERTAEER-Z
—hWE=A=tHAATME-
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEME - continued

(b) Post-listing share options - continued
Notes: — continued

(vi)

In accordance with the terms of share-based

arrangement, the share options granted on 18 March

2011 are exercisable in the following manner:

(a)

up to 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 23 March
2010 to 22 March 2011;

up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2011 to 22 March 2012;

up to further 20% of the share options granted
to each grantee shall be exercisable on or after
23 March 2012 to 22 March 2013; and

all the remaining 20% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be exercisable on or
after 23 March 2013 to 22 March 2014, and in
each case, not later than 22 March 2015.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

25. SRR MRt & — 4R
(b) EmiEMmadE—i&

B & -

(vi)

4=

BEBEURDEBERZHEZGR
RZZE——E=A+tNAEHZ
BERETIRT AT

(a)

BRZ40%ER T EEEA
ZERETE-_Z—ZTF=
A-t+=BEz%E=%
——F=A=t+Z=HTE;

IR Z20%E % T K&
BAZEBRETE-T——
FE=ZA-t+=H"HZEE=
E-—_F=A=-+=ZH1T
(B2

IR Z20%C & F K&
BAZEBREITR-—Z—=
F=ZA=t+=HA"5ZEE=
E—=f=A=-+=ZH1T
R

2 T20%E 8 F K&
BRAZEBRETE_ZT—=
F=ZA=-t+=HA"5ZEE=
T-ME=A=-+=HT
£ HERAEBERTREER
—E-HE=A=+=AH1T
{0
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26. TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE 26. EREREMIE
Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts EXBERZERMERIHEYRHE
received and receivable from third parties in connection with BEREUARRHEASHEERREE KR
the retail and wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical BRE=F2FRIBEEE KREE &%
products and related services and provision of general BMEEMKZ ZDTOT :
hospital services. An analysis of the Group's turnover and
other revenue are as follows:—
2013 2012
“®-—=% | —F—=F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET THET
Turnover: FESE
Retail of pharmaceutical and BYIRMEBERTE
related products 212,521 187,002
Wholesale and distribution of EYERREBRBEHERDH
pharmaceutical products and related
services 1,666,543 1,514,270
Provision of general hospital services RESREMER R 141,525 134,504
2,020,589 1,835,776
Other revenue: Hfhr & -
Bank interest income RATFI 2 U A 717 1,107
Loan interest income ERA B WA 2,323 2,061
Rental income HEUWA 1,410 1,195
Exhibition income REWA 4,505 2,358
Sundry income FETE UL A 1,421 1,968
10,376 8,689
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27. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 27. BEXRHAN
Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging: R ERR A TN RT 518 B BIES:
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E—_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T TET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 28) EEE (FiEE28) 3,047 2,962
Share-based payment expenses DR AER2NREX 1,284 3,190
Other staff’s retirement benefits scheme HEth& T ZERKEF 5 EIE R
contributions 8,704 7,947
Other staff costs Hih8 T A 78,808 65,251
91,843 79,350
: . i
Auditors’ remuneration ZE A £ 900 900 o
Provision for impairment losses B 5k HEMhERKRRIE Bﬁ
on trade and other receivables WAEE RS 989 927 w
Cost of inventories sold EEFEHRA 1,753,215 1,569,538
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  F& {3 7 & 718 # 85 1,224 1,209 f?';
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BRERZEINE ul
equipment — owned by the Group —HASE®E 10,545 9,963 N
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BERZBZER N
plant and equipment 276 244 §
Operating lease rentals in respect of RITREFIKEHERS _T%
land and buildings 19,927 18,068 £
Loss on early redemption REERALZEZEE
of promissory note 1,389 -
and after crediting: B#EEtA -
Other income: HAUY A :
Exchange gain [E 5 U i 110 23
Change in fair value of investment REMNEATFERZH
properties 492 1,335
Reversal of impairment loss of trade and B 5 K& H {th F& WL 5K I8 iR B B 18 3 =]
other receivables 551 2,308
1,153 3,666
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I
28. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 28. EEE&
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 ZREENEBEE—=FK=_ZF—=-F
March 2013 and 2012 are set out below: ZA=t—HLEEFEEZHFME RS 0
T:
Retirement
Salaries and Share-based benefits scheme
Fees other benefits payment expenses contributions Total
e HeRAMET URHEERZ FRAR RARAH GRS #x
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Z%-Zf |Z%--% |ZB-Zf |Z%--% |Z8-Zf |-%--% |ZB-Zf |-%--% |Z8-ZfF |ZE--f%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER TET TER TEL TER TET TER TET TET
Executive directors UITES
Yung Kwok Leong SEZ ([H%EE])

("Mr. Yung") - = 720 720 - - 14 12 734 732
Chen Jin Shan R& WL - - 60 60 80 229 - - 140 289
Jiang Tao & - - 360 360 60 154 - - 420 514
Zheng Gang 5 - - 1,172 1,000 108 296 14 12 1,294 1,308
Weng Jiaxing (resigned SmE(R=F--F

on 28 December 2012) +ZA=tN\AH

B - - 270 360 76 220 11 12 357 592
Huang Jiaging EME - - 120 120 16 38 - - 136 158
- - 2,702 2,620 340 937 39 36 3,081 3,593
Non-executive directors ~ FH{TEE
Wong Yu Man, James IHNE = - 120 120 - 6 6 6 126 132
Independent non- BIERITES

executive directors
Wong Ka Wai, Jeanne EEE 60 60 - = - = - - 60 60
Hu Shanlian HEH 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
Lu Chuanzhen BEE 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60

180 180 - - - - - - 180 180
180 180 2,822 2,740 340 943 45 42 3,387 3,905

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments during the year (2012:
Nil).

During the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, the
executive director of the Company, Mr. Yung was also the
chief executive officer of the Company.

RAFE AEBSEEESAHME U
WEIEMBAEERERMBRE LB
BREE SERESRNIFERRTANS
(ZF—Z—F:8)-

BE-_S-—=—GR-_ZE-—_—F=HB=1+—
ALEFE AQRZHTESHEETS
AR ZITBHEE -
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29. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 29. BRM&
The five highest paid employees during the year included FREAERHGEEEBE=R(=Z28—C=
three (2012: three) directors. Details of whose remuneration F . =ZR)ES-HE2MESFBEHRAE
are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial B IR R M EE28 o
statements.
For the year ended 31 March 2013, the details of the BE-Z—=F=-HA=1+—HLEFE &
remuneration of the remaining two (2012: two) non- THME(ZE——F MB)IESEZR
directors, highest paid employee are as follows: SHEEZMEFBEAOT :
2013 2012
—Z—=F —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Basic salaries and allowances HEARFLRIFR 1,385 1,283 ;Hmﬁ
Retirement benefits scheme RRTE FI ST B ALK %
contributions 29 24 -
an
i
1,414 1,307 [
al
N
=
N
None of the above five highest paid individuals received LERAZEEEHALTREZHMEH B S
emoluments in excess of HK$1 million. #1,000,00058 JT © _‘;{
g
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to RAFE AEEBUEOFES RS H
the non-director, highest paid individuals as an inducement AT & AR S| H R A Bk
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for RANBERSNEREE-

loss of office.
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30. FINANCE COSTS 30. MBEHA
2013 2012
—¥—= —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FET
Interest on: LLTIEE Z2F & :

— interest expenses on bank borrowings —-ZERAEFRZHEEZEZ
wholly repayable within five years RITEEZNERX 4,090 4,928
— interest expenses on convertible note —HABRREEZANERX 475 443
— interest expenses on promissory note  — AR ZiE 2 K B X 5,723 5,852
10,288 11,223

31. TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in
the consolidated financial statements as the Group incurred
a taxation loss for the year. Provision on profits assessable
elsewhere has been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on

31. RIF

existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect

HRAKERAFEEEREGER At
WERNGRS M BEHERAREEREBE
HiE e - HthE 2 BRBUEF T RIEA
SEEBRERR 2RB LN 2RERIE
PR EBRITHRTE

thereof.
2013 2012
—E—Z=% —E-C-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TH#T FiERT
Current taxation: BN EARR 18 :
Provision for the year REERE
- The PRC —HE 22,581 23,741
Under provision in prior year: FFERETR:

— The PRC —HE 229 _
PRC withholding tax (refund)/paid (BR) B =zHEFENHR (612) 2,688
Deferred tax recognised during the year F R ZIELERE (KfzE24)

(Note 24) (57) (51)
22,141 26,378




31. TAXATION - continued

The charge for the year is reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Notes to the Financial Statements
BF 75 3R = M 5

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

31. RIA— 18
AEETHEEAEIEEERTIBRH
BRI 2 BRI T :

BE_Z—=%ZA=1+—HL=FE

Hong Kong the PRC Total
i HE #t
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THT % THT % THET %
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBl (B8) R (26,745) 99,428 72,683
Tax at applicable income tax rate RERREHESE2HE (4,413) 16.5 24,857 25.0 20,444 28.1
Tax effect of expenses and AANBRBEHR2BEX
income not deductible or RBAZHBTE
taxable for tax purposes 1,848 (6.9) (2,207) (2.2) (359) (0.5)
Tax effect of under-provision BETRZHBZE - - 229 0.2 229 0.4
PRC withholding tax refund 2EPEENH (612) 2.3 - - (612) (0.8)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised BB 2 HIEEHE 2
HEEE 2,508 (9.4) (69) (0.1) 2,439 33
Tax charge and effective tax rate AEEREIERERHE
for the year (669) 2.5 22,810 22.9 22,141 30.5
For the year ended 31 March 2012 BE_E—_—F=A=t+—HLEE
Hong Kong the PRC Total
V) H @t
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TEx % TER % TER %
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAT (B) a7 (19,278) 103,685 84,407
Tax at applicable income tax rate RERRBHEGEZHE (3,181) 16.5 25,921 25.0 22,740 26.9
Tax effect of expenses and AANMBRBEAB 2B X
income not deductible or RBMAZHBERE
taxable for tax purposes 1,052 (5.5) (2,352) (2.3) (1,300) (1.5)
PRC withholding tax paid EHEENE 2,688 (13.9) = = 2,638 32
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KRERRBEE 2 HBEHE 2,077 (10.8) 173 0.2 2,250 2.7
Tax charge and effective tax rate AEERBEXIHRERBE
for the year 2,636 (13.7) 23,742 22.9 26,378 31.3

ErHEEEHREE

B+ €102/210C
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32. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 March 2013, net loss of approximately
HK$7,649,000 (2012: HK$4,615,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.

32. XTI AAEEEIR

BE-ZE—=F=Z=A=+—HLEE &
BIFEEE 7,649,000 T (= F—ZF:

4,615,000/ 7t) E R QA 2 B 75 3Rk 3k

2%
33. EARNINGS PER SHARE 33. B R T
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share ARBBEEABEESREARBERF
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BRBRIEAT BURRT &
following data:
2013 2012
—E—=% —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Earnings aF
Profit for the purpose of basic and RAUSEBREARBERR 2
diluted earnings per share Y A
— Profit for the year attributable to S WNCIEZ =N
the owners of the Company FE AL AR & R 42,740 49,666

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share
— Ordinary shares in issue
— Preference shares in issue

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:
— Share options issued by the
Company

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

RUGTESREXRFN 2
BB DR 9 B

—ERITEBER
—ERTELIR

BEBFEERZE:

—AREBRITZERE

RUGESREERF 2
HERMEFHIH

No. of shares

No. of shares

B {7 8 B iegvil 2 4=
"000 '000

Fi& T
1,063,444 741,476
118,994 440,962
1,182,438 1,182,438
16,501 4,015
1,198,939 1,186,453




33.

34.

35.

Notes to the Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE - continued

For the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012, the
calculation of diluted earnings per share did not assumed the
exercise of the Convertible Note existed at 31 March 2013
and 2012 as the exercise of the Convertible Note would

increase earnings per share, therefore anti-dilutive.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012:
Nil).

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 April 2011, the Company entered into an agreement
with independent third parties to acquire 100% of the
entire issued share capital of Hui Hao (Quanzhou) Medicine
Limited (the “Hui Hao Quanzhou”) and identifiable asset
and liabilities of Hui Hao Quanzhou, for a total contracted
consideration of RMB 1,860,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,206,000). The aggregate amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition is approximately HK$338,000.

The acquisition was completed on 1 April 2011.

33.

34.

35.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

SRET &
BE-_Z-—=FfRk-_Z—-F=A=+-—
ALEFE sTESRBERF T &R
RITER=—E—=FK=-ZF—-F=H
=S+-—HEREZHUERERE RTER
BEREESSERBAEM BMEEREKR
]‘%&?*Ejﬁ o

U e —

B2
EEfEEREBE S —=F=A=1+—
HEEERSFEMRE(ZZ— 4%
) o

KiE—MREAT

RZEBE——FMA—A AQAFHEBY
BZRFTLGHER UBEHAREBEARS
1,860,0007t (6% 74 #92,206,000% 7T)
SR (RMN)BEERAR ([BHFR
M) 2IWERITRAZ100% AR B R
MzARPEEREE ARBEEZE
BN A338,0008B T ZMBER =
E——FWMA-HREMR"

ErHEEEHREE
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35. IR — MM E L E — &

- continued
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before
combined
and
fair value
HUEAs
R & BERT
ZIEEE
ROFE
HK$000
FET
Net assets acquired R EERE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 387
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HhERFRIE 3,320
Inventories 7E 1,394
Cash and bank balances RE RIVITEER 742
Trade and other payables B REMEMNRIE (3,944)
Tax payables FE A+ %18 (31)
1,868
Goodwill (Note 9) B2 (M5E9) 338
2,206
Total consideration at fair value BATEARZERKE UTHNEXXM:
satisfied by:
Cash and bank balances REeRIRITEER 2,206
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: BBEEZHESRANBHE:
Cash and bank balances acquired Pk g 238 € RIRITHEER 742



Notes to the Financial Statements

35. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

- continued
Hui Hao Quanzhou was acquired so as to continue the
expansion of the Group’s pharmaceutical wholesale and

distribution and pharmaceutical retail chain business.

Acquisition related costs amounting to approximately
HK$1,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as expense in the

period.

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Hui Hao Quanzhou
because the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to
the benefits of expected synergies, revenue growth, future
market development and the assembled workforce of Hui
Hao Quanzhou. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition

criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

Included in the profit for the year ended 31 March 2012
is approximately HK$268,000 and revenue for the year is
approximately HK$79,509,000 attributable to the additional

business generated by Hui Hao Quanzhou.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

35. IR — MR E LT — &

WREEFRMNEERERRASE &
mitBER D EUAR ERTEBHERS -

WEE B AK1,0008 TE B FTEER
ETNRIERBRERBFAX -

RUBEHFRMNEEE 2EHEDESH
BABEEREE W REHITZ
REERLLEEREZEHFRMNZERBE
ME-WHER ARTEERERKET
AFERZANERRA 2 EHE - ZEFHIL
BEBHEDRER  DEZENEL TN
BHURBEREE 2 BIARE

BE-Z——F=ZH=1—RHLLFEEF
BEREHRMNAHREIEEEEZD
268,000 T MAFERBZEBEEFR
M P 75 3R B8 b 2 75 BE 4G 2 979,509,000

b vl

ErHEEEHREE
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36.

On 12 March 2012, Beiyi Renzhi (Beijing) Investment
Consultancy Limited (the “Beiyi Renzhi”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company was deregistered. Beiyi Renzhi is

engaged in provision of general hospital services.

Summary of the effects of the disposal of a subsidiary are as

HE—HHE LT
R-ZZB-——F=A+=H XQAZEE
MEBARLBLCE (AR)REZHAER
AR (LB CENEHIH LBLCE
REBRUESMEERR -

HE—BWBAR 2 EBMmmT :

follows:
HK$'000
THET
Net assets disposal of: FRHEZCEERE:
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEER 1,432
1,432
Non-controlling interests EERER (1,432)
Release of translation reserve % BR B 5 {7 18 (611)
Gain on disposal HEz W aE 611
Satisfied by: UTHERZA:
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHEER -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHRQNRHBEHE:
Cash and bank balance disposed FTHEZ2RERIBIT

FER s (1,432)



37.

38.

39.

Notes to the Financial Statements

PLEDGED ASSETS
At 31 March 2013, certain bank deposits were pledged for
the Group's bill payables.

At 31 March 2012, certain bank deposits,
payments (Note 7) and investment properties (Note 8) of

prepaid lease

the Group were pledged as collateral for certain banking
facilities granted to the Group and independent third party.

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Company had not pledged
any assets.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group were committed to make the following future
minimum lease payments in respect of land and buildings
rented under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

37.EEHRE

38.

R=B-—=6=A=t+-R ETRIHE
SAE B E 2 B RIE T T AR o

R-BE-—ZH=ZA=+t—H A&@E2z%H
TIRITEHR BANHEERE (K7 k&
BV (M) EEARTFAKRERE Y
F=R2AETRITHEZEIFRM T U
o

R=2-—=#R-2-—-F=A=+-
B AAFLEREAEARE -

EEHERRIE
AEBRBEAA L RET 2 T THH
REBEETEUATARRBEHESARE
ZHAE:

as follows:
The Group
XEHE
2013 2012
—E—Z=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiE&xT FET
Within one year —F R 18,657 15,477
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_EZEFE (BEEEMSE) 35,276 30,850
Over five years B hE 3,462 5,910
57,395 52,237

NON-CASH TRANSACTION
On 30 December 2011,
of 66,900,000 share options to directors and employees

the Group offer an aggregate

to subscribe for 66,900,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company, under the Share Option
Scheme. Share-based payment expenses of approximately
HK$3,190,000 was recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2012.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement on
30 September 2011.

39.

FREXTH
R-ZZE——F+-A=+8 AEERE
BRESEODEERESRERE
66,900,00017 8 B & - LAFEEE66,900,000
BAABDEREEOIBITZHEER-
RBE-_ZE——_F=A=+—HLEE
ZEABERABAURGAER 2

B2 493,190,0008 7T - RS -
EﬁﬂxAﬂaﬁﬁ%_i——ihﬁ:+E
Z Do

A
S

nﬁ/

ErHEEEHREE
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

41.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in funds under the control of trustee. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees. Since 1 June
2012, both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions
are subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
during the year, the Group had entered into the following
transactions with related parties which, in the opinion of
the directors, were carried out in the ordinary course of the
Group’s business:

(a) Key management personnel
Remuneration for key personnel management,
including amount paid to the Company’s directors and

40. & 8 7 &t &

41.

AEBAEB2RAERESERLEY
MABETE ([HE]) B zEER
FEE2EESRER  FABHRBEAE
HZEZ - FAEEREBEFHEA5%ME
SrEME - BETSHFEHERMR B
E-ZHFEARA-BUR FEEREER
2z R EREIBER1,25087T -

AABHEMBEARZEES T EBMA
ERCEARERRABANTERE - A2
BAzPEMNBLARARFMA 25T
B 70 tb B3R R 48 R 5t 8 SRR LR Y R K
BA - AEEB R KB E 2 —BIE
BREBFEMEHPIFEER

EXAEALES

BREaMBRRAMHIFEZIRER
BRI FARAKEEHEBEATET
TIRG EEZRR ZERZNEE
B HEXBBRETET:

(a) ¥EBEAR
TEEBASHMN (BREMHF28R
9BBENTFARAEERETES

certain of the highest paid employee, as disclosed in FEEZSE)NT :
Note 28 and 29, is as follows:

2013 2012
—B—=F | =F—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Short-term employee benefits EHEEREA 3,047 2,962
Share-based payment expenses DRHAERMNRZEXZ 340 943
3,387 3,905
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS - continued

42.

(b)

Mr. Yung has entered into a personal guarantee
agreement on 30 November 2011 with Shanghai
Pudong Development Bank to secure short-term
banking facilities and bills payable on behalf of the
Group in an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB50,000,000 for the period from 14 November
2011 to 14 November 2012.

Mr. Weng lJiaxing, an ex-director of the Company,
which resigned on 28 December 2012 has entered into
a personal guarantee agreement on 30 October 2012
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
to secure banking facilities on behalf of the Group
in an aggregate amount of RMB10,000,000 for two

years.

During the year, the Group had the following
connected transactions with related parties:

41.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

EXHEALXS &

(b) SEER=-_Z——F+—-—HA=TH
B EERRERBITRTLEALE
Rtz URB=-Z——%+—A8
+THBEE=—ZE——-F+—A+HAH
IFHEARKRAEBEREBBEOAR
#£50,000,000t 2 R EASRITEER
B EE-

R-E——F+-A=-+N\HEE
ZEMEEE (KQAF2—BAE
E)ER=-_ZE——-F+A=1+HH
FETEIRITRAER DR —
B EAERBBEARKRAEBEE
AHMEHLSEE ARE10,000,000
TZBITEE-

(0 FR-FAEEEBEALZBEXR
ZWT

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E-CZF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
REALTRE XHHE FTHET THET
Non-controlling shareholder of Management fee paid
Edward Hospital Company Limited 1,243 1,023
EREEREBRARAAZFERRR ENEEE

For the transactions constitute connected transactions under

GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected Transactions”

under “Report of the Directors”.

COMPARATIVE

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.

42.

RBBRAERLETRAUZERZ B RE
BERXGME F2HIESEHS/ET
ZBEXS]-

-4 3 B o
ETHBRSHEOEEHHE UERAE
EZ25HR—He

ErHEEEHREE
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43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements
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31 March 2013 Z&—=F=H=+—H

43.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2013 are as

follows:

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

FEMB LT
AKARR=ZBE—Z=Z=F=A=+—Hz=E
EE AR (ZEEBERAE)FBENT :

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
BRTR
EMmAx/ MELER FREEE
HEABRE B/ ERibE BEMEFEE BREESL FEXRH
Fujian Maidsen Enterprises The PRC RMB40,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Company Limited* hospital management services
REEBREXERLF" i AR#40,000,0007 100% REEEREREERY
Edward Hospital Company Limited* The PRC RMB40,000,000 55%  Provision of
general hospital services
ERERZRRARLA" P AR #40,000,0007 55% REGEUBRRS
Jiaxing City Shuguang Western and The PRC RMB15,000,000 55%  Provision of
Chinese Composite Hospital general hospital services
Company Limited*
RETBATABLESBRAERD e AR#15,000,0007 55% REGEUBRRY
Zhuhai Zhongkangan The PRC HK$3,000,000 100%  Provision of healthcare and
Enterprises Management Limited? hospital management services
KERERLXERERAA P E 3,000,000 7t 100% REBERBREERK
Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited* Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
B (BR)BEEBBERLF" e 1,000,000 7T 100% REER
Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao The PRC RMB60,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Pharmaceutical Company Limited?* distribution business in the PRC
BRRABNTEHEXERA R " E AK%60,000,0007T 100% REPBEZENHER D HEES



43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Place of
incorporation/
establishment/

Notes to the Financial Statements

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid
ordinary share/

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable

43. FEMB LT - &

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group  Principal activities
ERTR
BT/ BREER FREER
MELF&E B/ ERME EMEXEE BE#EESLE TEEE
Putian Medicine Co. Ltd.* The PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
GEEHEFEEFRAA" HE AK¥10,000,0007 100%  RAEZENHER D HER
Fujian Huiming Medicine Co. Ltd.* The PRC RMB20,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
REEAEPBEEERLF HE AE#20,000,0007T 100% RAPEZENHBR I HEES
Fujian Huihao Sihai Pharmaceutical The PRC RMB15,856,000 99.29%  Pharmaceutical retail chain
Chain Company Limited* business in the PRC
BREFNEEEEHERERAR HE AK#15,856,0007 99.29% RAEIZENZEEHEEK
Hui Hao Quanzhou The PRC RMB 10,000,000 100%  Pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business in the PRC
M HE AK¥10,000,0007 100%  RAEZENHER D HER
i The English transliteration of the Chinese names in this report, t RMEP BB 2R B EEMRER

where indicated, is included for information only, and should

not be regarded as the official English names of such Chinese

names

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results

or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

TRABABEPXEBZEXNEER

ERFINADAMBLANESRAY
FEEXRANEEREARZEE -EER
RREEHEMHNBLARZERSERIER

RUKe

ErHEEEHREE
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44, CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bill payables, bank borrowings, promissory note
and convertible note), cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising

issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012

were as follows:

44, BXERBRER

AEBERHERNUBRRAKE CERE
BEFECE UBRBB(LEBRESS
BORRTFREADBF RBEFE X
EECBRBRBERSTE-

FEECEAGRBEEYR (BETRER
FREE - RITEE AAZBERTRRE
B) RERBAESLEEBEERFAQTAES
BFEARERE (EHhEESBRTRA
EERRETER) -

BEAGBLE
R==2 =F=H=+—HAE=F—=
F=A=1+—HzZEEEBBLRUT:

2013 2012

—EB—=% —E-_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T#T T T

Debt (note (a)) B (FiEE(a)) 252,284 284,292

Cash and cash equivalents BHeRBELEEEE (83,589) (132,059)

Net debt B FER 168,695 152,233

Equity (note (b)) BRA (Bt aE(b) ) 945,065 898,883

Gearing ratio EEBGBHE 0.18 0.17
Notes: P& -

(@) Debt comprises bill payables, bank borrowings, convertible
note and promissory note as detailed in Notes 19, 20, 22 and
23 respectively.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

(a) EBEEEMNREE RITEE TBRE
BRALZE #1820 ERME19
20 +22K%23 e

(b)) BRABEAKEMBEAREE-



45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

(b)

45. & TH

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

(a) EMIRSW

The Group The Company
F5HE F0H
2013 2012 2013 2012
“$-=F | ZE2-Z-F | 28— | Z2-C=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables EXRERHIE
(including cash and (BFEEER
cash equivalents) BEeZEEBER) 519,416 451,922 886,867 895,338
Derivative financial PERARATEESB
instruments classified BailR2ITE
as fair value through ERIA
profit or loss 69 161 69 161
Held-to-maturity BFEZERHzRE
investment - 123 - -
Financial liabilities MERR
Amortised cost i E R AR 580,656 541,600 223,710 225,789

Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's

overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s

financial performance. The management manages

and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

(b) MERREDRHRR KR

FEBECEBEHZBMERERE:

mERRE (BRERRRRAERE
) FERRERBESER A
SE-ERRREREARERERN
RERBNEETIE  BREHAR
SEMBRRZEETFNEZERE
BER-EEBEERERZSRE

BRURBEER 2HFXERAREE

i o

ErHEEEHREE
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign exchange

rates and interest rates.

Market risk exposures are measured using

sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group's
exposure to market risks or the manner in which

it manages and measures the risk.

Foreign currency risk management

The Group has minimal exposures to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is also exposed to market interest
rate risk mainly in relation to floating rate bank
borrowings (Note 20). The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of benchmark interest rate published
by the People’s Bank of China arising from the

Group’s RMB denominated borrowings.

45. €M T H—&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

()

h 45 L B
AEEMZEBRFTESAEEE
EERRANEZD 2 HBERA

FIRCE 258 BB A SURE 5
e

AEBEAAZ 2HERAREE
BERITERR G RN ES
o

SRR E
AEEZIERAREN RE
VBN HE PN S
BEREEZEURBEMBEL
A2 ERHE AEEE
MYTEBENERS BER
BEZIEHABR - AEH
A BRREEESNEE R IS
RELEREZRBHHPERINE
2 s o

Fl 3 7 iz & HE
AEBTEEREZEFEBHFZE
RITEERRE 2™ ST ZER
(MizE20) - AEBEZRERE
MEREEEERRAER
ARBFEZEBEEEZHE
ARBITAMZEER R
Bo



Notes to the Financial Statements

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

()

Market risk — continued

Interest rate risk management — continued

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest
rate risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March
2013 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$5,000 (2012: HK$51,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rate has
decreased during the current period mainly due

to reduction in variable rate borrowings.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

45. €M TR &
(b) MERBREEEERBE-&

()

4% B —
FIFE R EE &

AREE I EEREAR R
LA BT B 2 A R @ B o A
o EEEEEENRERE:
YHNFEREBHPEKAF
=

TXZHBRED T IIRIZEFEDT
ATARBEPRRMEAZ 2
NERBEE -FEMEEM
= HE2 W DBRRR|BEHRK
HAREEZBESENEREF
ERGREZE REAKNFPEE
EREABRERNREARTIERA
MRS0EF - EREEE FraT
EARSERRZAREE-

fist Kl & £ F /T BES0E 2
MmArEEMmEEEFTE A
AEBEBE-_ZT-—=F=#
E+—BLEFEZHEAER
4 /8 N#5,0008 T (=&
— Z— % :51,00087C) It T3
TERBAEERBE=-Z
—=F=A=+-—-HLEE
AR BEMEAZ ZFIER

oo o
N

REBAEZHRAERAKEE
BB EERBEARFEME
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is

arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position;

and

o the carrying amount of the respective
pledged investment properties and prepared
lease payments as stated in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and debt investments at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating

agencies.

45. €M T H—&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

(ii)

EE R
RZB-—Z=ZFR=FT——F=
B=+t—H AEEHEHFH
REBTEERKTEER M
HBER ISAKERZAH
BEAZEEEERBIIR
=

s HRAUBHARRMEASZ
HOBRRAMBEEZR
E{E R

s HAEUBHRRKMEZ
FHCERRENER
BNHERBEZRET
B

REFERBREERE A&
BEEECER—EEREE
BEEFERE FEMERA
b BEERA2 /7 - LARE R ER R 3
TERWEIEEBEE L A
EEERNE|ELRELE 5
B EEREHIREZAWE
TR UBEARBAERE 2
BIFHRE R ZBERRE - 5t
ME ARAESAR FE
BeEERBERERD -

R F 59 R PR TR
BERTEEEFRZRT B
RBEEZEERBAR-
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

(i)

(iii)

Credit risk - continued

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not
have any other significant concentration of credit
risk. Trade and other receivables consist of a
large number of customers, spread across diverse

industries and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management
of the Group’s short, medium and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has available
unutilised short and medium term bank loan
facilities of approximately HK$32,381,000.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group has available
unutilised overdrafts and short and medium
term bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$1,131,000 and HK$60,938,000 respectively.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

45. €M TR &
(b) MERBREEEERBE-&

(ii)

(iii)

ERERE—&

BRERRETEARESFEENR
RITZRBESHEEZES
FERRSI AEEIEEM
HtEARZEREERR &
SREMERREBSRKE
BEF BEZETETERD

=
oo ©

RBREeERRER

EEEREEERDESAR
ZEREME MEBECEY
—EeEzRBDETRARE
HEER RUEERAEEZE
HohHERPAESRESR
BESEREFR-AEEER
REZEZHEE RITEER
RBEERE URSFEHR
ARBRRERBETESR
BEeMBEERMBAEGEZE
HER BUEERBESE

AEBEBARSAEH K H R
TEFEI#32,381,000/8 7T ©

AEEERBAEXARE
MRAHBRITERED LN
1,131,000 7t }60,938,000
BITe
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

45. €M T H—&
(b) MERBREEEERBE &

(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (i) RBESRBREE &
The following tables detail the Group's remaining TRFMEFIAREEIFITEY
contractual maturity for its non-derivative BEBZFBESHNEHR 25
financial liabilities which are included in the ARBTFTRBEIEEEAEZ
maturity analysis provided internally to the RS UEBRBESE
key management personnel for the purpose BoRMFITEMBEEMS
of managing liquidity risk. For non-derivative TRIDERMBEGBZ KRR
financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up BRIBRE (BREZSEE
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities #BRE 2 R 2) iR & R
of the financial liabilities including interest that SEREABEREMBBEEZ
will be earned on those assets except where the BEREBERI - FRIFITEYH
Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur BEMS  TRRBRERAE
in a different period. For non-derivative financial BRERGRZEE B2
liabilities, the tables reflect the undiscounted cash KEBEZARBRESRET
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest REFEINERETEHESRE -
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
The Group X5E
At 31 March 2013 BR-ZB—Z=%#=A=+—H
Weighted
average Total
effective Within 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
mEEY E3'30)
ERfl® —%R —ER§ BBILF HeREHE BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
% THET THET TET TET TET
Non-derivative financial ~ FfTEMBRRK
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk H B[ HE - 331,669 - - 331,669 331,669
Bank borrowings RITEE 7.7% 52,104 - - 52,104 50,672
Amounts due to non- ENfFERERTE
controlling interests - 1,053 - - 1,053 1,053
Promissory note ALER 3.0% - - 220,000 220,000 192,635
Convertible note TEREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 4,627
384,826 6,500 220,000 611,326 580,656
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 45. eI R &
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERREREARREK &
policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (iii) RBELRABEEE-&
At 31 March 2012 R-B-Z—Zf=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFH RER
BRA= —£R “EE% BBLE KRERELRE RHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% FER TER FET TER TER
Non-derivative financial FITERBER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B o REMENTE - 302,450 - - 302,450 302,450
Bank borrowings RITEE 8.4% 38,078 - - 38,078 36,582 o
Amounts due to non- B FERERTE R
controlling interests - 551 - - 551 551 BE
Promissory note ARRE 3.0% - - 230,000 230,000 197,735 St
Convertible note RREE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 4,282 i
af
341,079 - 236,500 577,579 541,600 <
™
ol
S
The Company . 3/ | o
N
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=HA=+—H =
w
Ay
Weighted o
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
mEEY E330)
ERf® —&R —Eif BELF HEREME REE

% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET TET TET TET TET

Non-derivative financial ~ FfTEMHBERE

liabilities
Accruals and other payables  FE&HE A It H 1 FE 3 3008 - 1,452 - - 1,452 1,452
Amount due to subsidiaries  FEAS Kt B2 F & - 24,996 - - 24,996 24,996
Promissory note AAER 3.0% - - 220,000 220,000 192,635
Convertible note ARREE 10.97% - 6,500 - 6,500 4,627

26,448 6,500 220,000 252,948 223,710
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 45. e T R -5
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MERKEERHERBE &
policies — continued
(iii) Liquidity risk management - continued (i) RBELRREE &
At 31 March 2012 A—E——_F=A=+—H
Weighted
average
effective Total
interest Within 2to0 Over undiscounted Carrying
rate 1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFY AR
ERFI=E —FR —ZERE BREE BERELHE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TER TEx TET TEL TEL
Non-derivative financial FHTEHKARE
liabilities
Accruals and other payables fE:tE AR HAEAFRE - 1,543 - - 1,543 1,543
Amount due to subsidiaries BB 2 R E - 22,229 - - 22,229 22,229
Promissory note REER 3.0% - - 230,000 230,000 197,735
Convertible note ARREE 10.97% - - 6,500 6,500 4,282
23,772 = 236,500 260,272 225,789

(c) Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i) the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative instruments)
with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask

prices respectively; and

() &EMIAZAFHE

BEEVMBEERYBEBZLFE

ZIEWMT

(i) BEERRREHLRSRED
CEECMBEERMBAE
(BETETIR)ZAFE T
DHIZEMEZEHREAE

BE R
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 45. &g T R &
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) EMIAZAFEH-&
- continued
(i) the fair value of other financial assets and iy HtFKEERTEKERS (2
financial liabilities (including derivative ETETR) 2AFEDIRE
instruments) are determined in accordance with BrIEIEESRED N UWEEH
generally accepted pricing models based on Mz EBEXRAER TS
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates BHRG 2 EBXRREXRIERE
from observable current market transactions as ABEREBE -RUMEAER
input. For an option-based derivative, the fair ZOTETEMmME  AFETIMU
value is estimated using option pricing model (for HEEEEN (M H=—FF
example, the Black-Scholes option pricing model RETHEEEREA R - EH
and Binomial option pricing model). REEBEN)GHE-
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors EERR RTRAFMLEIN A
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets RENBREANVBEEERMEE ;ﬁmﬁ
and financial liabilities recorded in the consolidated BEREEEAE R FEES- i
financial statements approximate to their fair values. ?ﬁ
a
As 31 March 2013 As 31 March 2012 g
R-ZE—Z%#=ZA=+—-H | RZE—-F=A=+—H a
Carrying Carrying S
amount Fair value amount Fair value N
EE AFE REE AYE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 g
FTHT FTHT TExT THExT
Financial liabilities MERR
Convertible Note RREE 4,627 5,968 4,282 5,602
Promissory Note A EE 192,635 164,768 197,735 151,852
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments

- continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable:

1. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities;

2. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices); and

3. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

45. €M T H—&
() &EMIAZAFE-&

RiFaMBERARARRBZLFE
iHE
TREHRDSRIBRR D FER
B REATEUTERZEEDRI
B3R EeRMIAZHM:

1. RAFEFENDREERD
S LHEEENEBEZRE
(REHE)E,

2. 2RAFEHEDRBEER
BECEE (AER) RREE
(MREER)TBERAR
HMBE (TEERAEEZ
BE)E R

3. RLAFEFEDRAMER
i (BELFERABEDS
HECEERBBZAAE
HEE (TTEERAENEH
B))&E-
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 45. &g T R &
(c) Fair value of financial instruments () EMTEAZLAFEH—&E
- continued
The Group and the Company FEERFLT
At 31 March 2013 R-E—=%=A=+—H
Level 3 Total
34k #st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets HMEEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 69 69
The movement during the year ended 31 March 2013 BE-ZE—=F=ZA=+—HLHF
in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as ER3RATEFEZEHREE M
follows: K
Conversion
option
embedded in
convertible
note
CIE: Y3 %
AEZRBRiE
HK$'000
TER
At 1 April 2012 R=Z——FMB—H 161
Change in fair value recognised ERAQFELZH (92)

At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=HA=+—H 69

ErHEEEHREE

B+ €102/210C
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BA 7% 3R = M 5

31 March 2013 Z&—=F=H=+—H

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(c) Fair value of financial instruments
- continued
The Group and the Company
At 31 March 2012

45. €M T H—&
() &EMIAZAFE-&

ERERFLT
R-ZZE——-—F=H=+—H

Level 3 Total
3%k et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHB T F#E T
Financial assets HMEEE
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA 161 161

The movement during the year ended 31 March 2012

in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurement is as

follows:

BE-—E-——E=-A=+—HiLE
ERRAFEFEZERSEHN
T

Conversion

option

embedded

in convertible

note

AR EE

NE 2ZBIRRE

HK$'000

TEx

At 1 April 2011 R=-ZE——FMA—H 432
Change in fair value recognised EERAFLEEZD (271)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZZE——-—F=HA=+—H 161
There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in the RAEE (RE2RBEITEERE

current year (2012: Nil).

TE-CZF )



46.

47.

Notes to the Financial Statements

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 10 April 2013, the Company entered into the non-
redeemable convertible preference shares (“CPS")
Subscription Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Yung
Kwok Leong (“Mr. Yung”), pursuant to which, Mr. Yung
has agreed to subscribe for and the Company has agreed to
issue the 504,201,680 non-redeemable preference shares at
the total issue price of HK$120 million which will be satisfied
by setting off against HK$120 million principal amount of

the promissory note.

Details of the transaction are set out in the Company's

announcement dated 10 April 2013.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 10 June 2013.

46.

47.

B 5 R R MY &

31 March 2013 Z&—=%=F=+—H

HE&ER

R-ZE-—=FNA+H AAFRHEFEH
SEE ([HEE])FTZA A EE AR
EBER ([ATRERELR])RBEHZ ([Z
W&l Bl SELEERZRE  mMA
AT INEZEE17504,201,6808% 1~ A EE [
BER BRTER 268 T FLUKH
REERI2EBTINAREZEEN AN
e

RENHEBHERALIAHRA=-Z—=
FHA+THZRMA-

HEMBERER
MBREN-F-—=EXATARES
B EREET -

ErHEEEHREE

B+ €102/210C
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Financial Summary

MBERE

At 31 March 2013 R=&E—=F=F=+—H

For the year ended 31 March
BE=RA=1+—HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZE-Zf | B ZZ——% ZEZ-ZTF ZZEThE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiET FTART FTHET FET FTHET
Result ¥
Turnover =E 2 2,020,589 | 1,835,776 1,463,711 179,765 170,087
Profit/(loss) before taxation — BRELAIEAM / (EE) 72,683 84,407 58,751 (204,913)  (178,232)
Taxation | (22,141) (26,3798) (21,541) (1,723) (12,228)
Profit/(loss) for the year FE®AN/ (FE) 50,542 58,029 37,210 (206,636)  (190,460)
Profit/(loss) attributable to LT A L BE4EER
(E18)
— Owners of the Company —ARAFEEA 42,740 49,666 31,456 (211,283)  (200,548)
— Non-controlling interests —FERER 7,802 8,363 5,754 4,647 10,088
50,542 58,029 37,210 (206,636)  (190,460)
As at 31 March
B=A=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZE-ZHF |2 ZE——F ZE-ZF ZEThF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T FTExT FTAET FTET TERT
Assets and liabilities EERAR
Total assets BEE 1,578,537 | 1,491,156 1,374,723 1,282,732 394,977
Total liabilities =R (592,498) (551,112)  (498,025)  (545,890) (38,915)
986,039 940,044 876,698 736,842 356,062
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